
 

 

 

City of Capitola Agenda 
   
  

 

Mayor: Sam Storey 
Vice Mayor: Dennis Norton 
Council Members: Ed Bottorff 
 Stephanie Harlan 
 Michael Termini 
Treasurer: Christine McBroom 
  

 

REVISED 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY, MAY 8, 2014  
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:45 PM 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting. 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code 

§54956.9) 
  Rae Ellen Leonard vs. the City of Capitola et al.  

[United States District, Case #C13-3714] 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, May 8, 2014 
 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, and Mayor 
Sam Storey 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 
 A. Mayor’s Proclamation regarding “National Poetry Month,” and poetry reading by 2014-

15 Santa Cruz County Poet Laureate Ellen Bass. 
 
 B. Mayor’s Proclamation in recognition and appreciation to retiring Leslie White, Santa 

Cruz Metropolitan Transit District General Manager. 
 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 
Additional information submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 
5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 

 
7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 
8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived. 

 
 A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on April 24, 

2014. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Minutes. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, May 8, 2014 
 

 

 
 B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 1, 2014. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Minutes. 

 
10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 

 
 A. Receive update regarding the Santa Cruz County Library Joint Powers Authority. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive update. 

 
 B. Consider a Resolution adopting the City’s General Plan Update and a Resolution 

certifying the Final Environmental Impact Report, adopting the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program and Statement of Overriding Considerations. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt Resolutions. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Adjourn to the next Special Budget Study Session of the City Council on Wednesday, May 21, 

2014, at 6:00 PM, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing.  Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council:  The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet are available 
for review on the City’s website:  www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.     Agendas are also available at 
the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola.  Need more information?   Contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300.  In an effort to 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, May 8, 2014 
 

 

accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on 
Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and 
Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on 
the Home Page link “Meeting Video”.  Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 
 



City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

Designating April 2014 
"National Poetry Month" 

WHEREAS, the Academy of American Poets established the month of 
April as National Poetry Month in 1996; and 

WHEREAS, National Poetry Month is the now the largest literary 
celebration in the world; and 

WHEREAS, the legacy and ongoing achievement of American poets is 
extraordinary; and 

WHEREAS, poetry is an essential part of the arts and humanities, and 
inspires artists in other fields such as music, theatre, film, dance, and the visual 
arts; and 

WHEREAS, the Capitola City Council celebrates the beauty of language 
and the vistas of imagination poetry creates; acknowledges the importance of 
poetry in education; and appreciates that poetry can enhance our understanding 
of ourselves and our appreciation of others; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council takes pride in Capitola's diverse, 
accomplished poets; and 

WHEREAS, a commemoration like National Poetry Month encourages 
our recognition and enjoyment of poetry; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL VED, that the City Council of the 
City of Capitola recognizes "National Poetry Month" and 1, Mayor Storey, call 
upon public officials, educators II of us in Capitola to observe 

ing enjoyment of poe y. \ , 

Sam Storey, ayor 
Signed and se this 8th day of May 2014 

-1-

Item #: 2.A. Presentation.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-2-



-3-

Item #: 2.B. 02.B. Les White Proclamation.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-4-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF MAY 8,2014 

FROM: OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE APRIL 24,2014, REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the subject minutes as submitted. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the 
subject meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. April 24,2014, Regular City Council Meeting 

Report Prepared By: Susan Sneddon, CMC 
City Clerk 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager.\_+-+-<-_ 

-5-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-6-



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING ACTION SUMMARY 

THURSDAY, APRIL 24,2014 -7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION - 6:45 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Storey called the meeting to order at 6:45 PM. He announced the items to be 
discussed in Closed Session, as follows: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code §54956.9) 

(1) Rae Ellen Leonard vs. the City of Capitola et al. 
[United States District, Case #C13-3714] 

Mayor Storey noted that there was no one in the audience; therefore, the City Council 
recessed to Closed Session. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7:00 PM 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, 
and Mayor Sam Storey . 

2. PRESENTATIONS 
A. Proclamation recognizing Building Safety Month. [120-40] 

Received by Community Development Director Grunow. 

B. Proclamation recognizing California Safe Digging Month. [120-40] 

Received by Dawn Mathes, Government Relations Representative at 
Pacific Gas ahd Electric Company. 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SES5SION 

City Attorney Barisone stated that the City Council received a status report 
regarding Rae Ellen Leonard vs. the City of Capitola et al (existing litigation); there 
was no reportable action. 

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Mayor Storey reported that additional material was received regarding Item 
No.8.A. on this evening's agenda. 

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA (None provided) 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS (None provided) 

7. CITY COUNCIL I CITY TREASURER I STAFF COMMENTS 

Council Member Termini stated that on April 25, 2014, the Capitola-Soquel 
Chamber of Commerce will have the Annual Community Awards Celebration. 

Mayor Storey stated that on April 25, 2014, he will be attending the Annual Santa 
Cruz World Surfing Reserve Summit. In addition, he provided appreciation to those 
that assisted with the April 22, 2014, memorial service for former City Police 
Officer Jason Grogen. 

-7-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES - Thursday, April 24, 2014 

8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Consider appointment(s) to the Library ad Hoc Committee. [230-10] 

ACTION 

Mayor Storey requested that Council discuss at a future Council meeting 
the number of members to comprise the Library Ad hoc Committee. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council 
Member Harlan, to approve the appointment of Susan Westman to 
the Library Ad hoc Committee; and to continue advertising for 
appointment(s) to the Library Ad hoc Committee until the May 1, 
2014, filing deadline. The motion carried unanimously .. 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Regular Meetings held 

on March 27,2014, and April 10, 2014. 

B. 

ACTION 

Approval of City Check Register Reports dated March 21,2014; March 28, 
2014; April 4, 2014; and April 11, 2014. [300-10] 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, seconded by Council 
Member Bottorff, to approve Consent Calendar Item No. 9.A. and 
Item No. 9.B. The motion passed unanimously with the following two 
exceptions: 

1. Council Member Harlan stated that she was not present at the 
April 10, 2014, City Council meeting, therefore she will abstain on 
the approval of the April 10, 2014, City Council minutes (portion 
of Item No. 9.A.). 

2. Council Member Norton voted no regarding the approval of 
Check No. 75756 payable to Santa Cruz Regional 911 (portion of 
Item No. 9.B.). 

10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT I PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 

ACTION 

B. 

ACTION 

Consider the establishment of Asset Limits for Income Restricted Mobile 
Home Parks [750-25]. 

Motion made by Council Member Termini, second by Council 
Member Harlan, to adopt the Administrative Policy regarding 
Affordable Housing Asset Limits for Mobile Home Parks with Income 
Restrictions using the asset limits of 1 % times the income limit plus 
$500,000 exclusion for qualified retirement accounts, or use the State 
of California asset limit which is 10% of assets added to the income 
calculation; to direct staff to negotiate and execute regulatory 
amendments, as needed, to implement the Affordable Housing Asset 
Limits Policy; and if an alternate proposal is submitted that it be 
agendized for City Council review. The motion was passed 
unanimously. 

Consider a Resolution rescinding Resolution No. 3936, and adopting a 
revised Conflict of Interest Code for the City of Capitola to become 
effective May 1, 2014. [570-20] 

Motion made by Council Member Harlan, second by Council Member 
Termini, to adopt Resolution No. 3990 rescinding Resolution No. 
3936, and adopting a revised Conflict of Interest Code for the City of 
Capitola to become effective May 1, 2014. The motion was passed 
unanimously. 

-8-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES - Thursday, April 24, 2014 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Storey adjourned the meeting at 8:00 p.m. to the next Regular 
Meeting of the City Council to be held on Thursday, May 8, 2014, at 7:00 
p.m., in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California. 

ATTEST: 

__________________ ,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

-9-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-10-



ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, MAY 1, 2014 
7 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ron Graves, Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and T J Welch 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

8. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. April 3, 2014, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 
ACTION: Approved 5-0 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 121 Cabrillo Street #14-035 APN: 036-185-10 
Design Permit for a 151 square foot addition to the front facade of a single-family 
residence located in the R-1 (Residential Single Family) Zoning District. 
This project does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Chris Heck 
Representative: Kurt Useldinger, filed 03/10/14 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

8. 312 Capitola Ave #8 #14-049 APN: 035-182-20 
Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for front fa<;ade modifications and 
Conditional Use Permit for outdoor dining and the sale of alcohol for the "It's Wine 
Tyme" business which is located in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit which is 
not appealable to the California Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peter Portido 
Representative: Mike Grabill, filed 4/1/14 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

C. 9118 Capitola Avenue #14-050 APN: 036-011-11 
Conditional Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages at the existing Quail and Thistle 
Tea Room located in the ARlCN (Automatic Reviewl Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
District. 
This project does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 

-11-

Item #: 9.B. Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, May 1,2014 

Property Owner: Margo Felldin 
Representative: Cindy Fairhurst, filed: 4/4/14 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

D. Improvements at the Intersection of Esplanade and Stockton Avenue #14-054 
APN: N/A 

2 

. Coastal Development Permit for intersection improvements at Esplanade and Stockton 
Avenue in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District. These improvements combine two 
crosswalks across Stockton Avenue into a single crosswalk, construct a median island, 
construct a raised bulb-out, and add street lighting to the intersection. In addition 
approximately 100 lineal feet of sidewalk along the eastern side of Stockton Avenue 
north of Esplanade will be widened 18 inches and 50 lineal feet of sidewalk fronting 103 
Stockton Avenue will be replaced. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: City of Capitola 
Representative: Steve Jesberg, filed 4/14/2014 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1649 41st Avenue #14-017 APN: 034-151-09 
Conditional Use Permit and Design Permit application for the addition of a propane tank 
to an existing service station (Shell) that is located in the CC (Community Commercial) 
zoning district. 
This project does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Peninsula Petroleum LLC 
Representative: Hillary McClurg 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

B. 712 Rosedale Avenue #13-153 APN: 036-072-05 
Design Permit application for a 450-square-foot addition to a single-family home in the 
R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning District. 
This project does not require a coastal permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Holger Schmidt 
Representative: Greg Heitzler, filed: 03/25/2014 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

C. Zoning Ordinance Update Work Plan 
ACTION: Report and comments only 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 8:20 p.m. to the next Planning Commission meeting Thursday, June 5, 2014, at 
7 p.m., in the Capitola City Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Ave., Capitola, California. 

-12-

Item #: 9.B. Minutes.pdf



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF MAY 8,2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: UPDATE REGARDING THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY JOINT 
POWERS AUTHORITY 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive update regarding the Santa Cruz County Library 
Joint Powers Authority. 

DISCUSSION: The Santa Cruz Public Libraries (SCPL) commissioned and accepted a 
Facilities Master Plan in April 2013. That plan identifies the capital maintenance, 
renovation, and development needs necessary to bring the entire system up to modern 
library standards, and includes a new library in Capitola. The total amount of money 
needed to accomplish the Master Plan objectives is approximately $63 million county
wide. 

In researching options to obtain this level of funding, SCPL has conducted public opinion 
polling. A poll conducted last month, indicates there is strong support for a parcel tax for 
the purpose of improving facilities. The overall finding is represented in the chart below: 

Residential Approx Favorable Favorable 
Parcel Yield before after 
Amount "education" "education" 

$58.40 65% 70% 

$48.40 $63 million 69% 73% 

$38.40 71% 73% 

$28.40 74% 77% 

Currently there are two library JPAs in the County, the Santa Cruz Public Libraries Joint 
Powers Authority (SCPL) which manages library operations throughout the County 
(excluding Watsonville), and the Library Financing Authority (LFA) which receives and 
disperses library revenue Countywide. 

In order to consider a regional bond measure, at least one of the current JPA 
agreements must be amended and there is general consensus it is advisable to amend 
both. Over the last six months the administrators of Capitola, Santa Cruz City and 
County, and Scotts Valley have been meeting to review the two library JPAs to 
recommend specific changes that should be considered. 

While no final recommendations by the administrators have been released, there is 
growing consensus on several points regarding the LFA: 

• Amend the LFA to allow it to create a Community Facilities District (CFD), to levy 
taxes and issue debt to fund the CFD. Such debt issuance would be subject to 
voter approval. 

• Amend the LFA to modify how the General Fund contributions from Santa Cruz 
and Watsonville are treated. 

-13-

Item #: 10.A. Staff Report.pdf



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 8,2014 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY UPDATE 

In addition the group suggests the SCPL JPA should be amended to: 

• Consider revisions to the governing board; 
• Modify how the relationship between the City of Santa Cruz and the SCPL to 

clarify the terms and how costs are attributed; 
• Identify that "equity of service" is a basic tenant of the agreement; 
• Overall JPA clean-up to eliminate dated language. 

If such amendments are ultimately proposed, they would be brought to the currently 
SCPL Board of Directors for comment, then each jurisdiction's city council for 
consideration. Changes to either of the existing JPAs require the approval of all 
jurisdictions involved. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Link to Facilities Master Plan 
http://www.santacruzpl.org/aboutscpl/planning/27/ 

Link to Current Library Joint Powers Agreement 
http://www.santacruzpl.org/aboutscpl/govern/8/ 

Link to Current Library Financing Authority Agreement 
http://www.santacruzpl.org/aboutscpl/govern/12/ 

Report Prepared By: Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 

Reviewed and Fo 
by City Manager" --+-++_ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\05 08 14\10 A Library Update.docx -14-

Item #: 10.A. Staff Report.pdf



CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF MAY 8,2014 

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends the City Council take the following actions: 

1. Adopt a Resolution certifying the Final Environmental Impact Report, and adopting the 
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program and Statement of Overriding Considerations; 

2. Adopt a Resolution adopting"the City's General Plan Update. 

BACKGROUND: State planning law requires all California cities and counties to adopt a 
General Plan which includes a comprehensive, long-term plan for the physical 
development of the jurisdiction. The General Plan is often referred to as the land use 
constitution and includes policies, graphics, and text which establish objectives and 
principles to guide future growth and development. General Plans must consist of seven 
mandatory elements (land use, circulation, housing, conservation, open space, noise, and 
safety) and may include additional, optional elements. The General Plan provides a basis 
for local government decision making and informs citizens, decision-makers, and other 
agencies of the ground rules which guide development within the city. 

Capitola's first General Plan was adopted in 1964, and was later updated in 1974 and 
1989. The planning horizon for a General Plan is generally 20 years. The City's current 
General Plan is now over 24 years old. 

A comprehensive update to Capitola's General Plan was initiated in July, 2010. To help 
define the community's visions and values the City Council appointed an 11-member 
General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC) to represent various neighborhoods and 
interests. Over the past three-plus years, the GPAC and staff engaged in an intensive 
public participation process which included 19 GPAC meetings and four public workshops. 
The GPAC process culminated on November 12, 2013, with a unanimous endorsement of 
the draft General Plan Update. 

A joint Planning Commission/City Council hearing was subsequently held on November 
21,2013, to consider the draft General Plan Update and to provide guidance on key policy 
issues. The Planning Commission and City Council voted to initiate public review of the 
draft General Plan Update and associated Environmental Impact Report (EIR). 

The General Plan Update and EIR were circulated for a 60-day public review period from 
December 19, 2013, to February 19, 2014. A total of 13 comment letters were received, 
including five from public agencies and eight from individuals. The vast majority of 
comments were editorial in nature and no significant issues were raised regarding the 
adequacy of the General Plan Update or EIR. A summary of comments and staff 
responses are included as Attachment 3. 

-15-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 8,2014 
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

On April 3, 2014, the Planning Commission considered the proposed General Plan 
Update and voted unanimously to recommend City Councils adoption. Following City 
Council adoption, a final General Plan will be prepared to incorporate revisions identified 
in Attachment 3 and those directed by the City Council. A revised historic section 
(Attachment 6) will also be added to the final document to provide additional historic 
context to the General Plan. 

DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola has experienced growth and change since its current 
General Plan was adopted in 1989. Additionally, numerous new laws and regulations 
relating specifically to General Plans or more generally to development, conservation, and 
sustainability have also been enacted. The proposed General Plan Update will modernize 
and reorganize the City's General Plan to allow these issues to be comprehensively and 
consistently addressed. The General Plan Update provides updates to six of the seven 
mandated elements (land use, conservation, mobility, noise, safety, and open space) and 
includes an optional economic development element. The seventh mandatory element, 
the housing element, is required by state law to be updated every eight years and is 
therefore on a separate track from the General Plan Update. The current Housing 
Element was approved by the Department of Housing and Community Development in 
2010, and is scheduled to be updated again by December, 2015. 

The principle objective of the proposed General Plan Update is to establish goals, 
policies, and actions which embody Capitola's fundamental visions and values while 
enabling efficient land use administration. The General Plan Update is founded on 
Guiding Principles which were developed through community outreach and the GPAC 
process. The Guiding Principles are statements of community values to guide growth, 
conservation, and enhancement which serve as the basis for underlying goals, policies, 
and actions. 

The General Plan Update goals and policies aim to preserve and enhance Capitola's 
unique coastal charm while allowing for moderated growth in targeted areas of the City. 
As a mostly built-out city, Capitola has limited capacity for new development and there is 
general consensus that increased densities and intensities should not be introduced to 
established residential neighborhoods or developed areas of the Village. Accordingly, the 
General Plan emphasizes enhancements in these areas, such as improved accessibility, 
sustainability, historic preservation, econo·mic viability, and ensuring new development is 
harmonious with existing community character. The proposed General Plan Update would 
retain existing residential density limits and would provide limited opportunities for 
increased commercial intensity. 

Key changes proposed within the General Plan Update include: 

• Greater attention to protecting existing residential neighborhoods; 
• Increased emphasis on sustainable development practices; 
• Promotion of transportation alternatives which reduce greenhouse gas emissions; 
• Additional energy and water conservation initiatives which conserve finite resources 

and respond to climate change; 
• Increased focus on historic and cultural resource preservation; 
• Additional goals and policies to maintain and enhance Capitola's parks and open 

spaces; 
• New goals and policies to preserve and enhance environmental resources; 
• Reorganization to create a more user-friendly document; 
• The addition of an Economic Development Element; and, 
• Establishment of reasonable commercial and mixed-use Floor Area Ratio limits. 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\OS 08 14\GPU\GPU Staff Report.docx 

-16-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 8,2014 
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

ISSUES FOR CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

Floor Area Ratio 
The primary remaining issue to resolve is establishing Floor Area Ratios (FAR) for 
commercial and mixed-use properties which are reflective of the existing built environment 
while also providing adequate capacity to accommodate anticipated growth over the next 
20+ years. State law requires general plans to establish maximum development 
allowances, which are typically defined by density in residential designations and FAR for 
commercial, industrial, and mixed-use designations. FAR describes the ratio of a 
building's total floor area compared to its total lot area. An illustration demonstrating 
theoretical FARs is included in Attachment 4. 

The existing General Plan establishes a citywide, 0.5 maximum FAR for commercial, 
industrial, and mixed-use designations, with the exception of the Village, which has no 
maximum FAR limit. It should be noted that numerous projects developed along the 41 st 

Avenue corridor over the last 20 years exceed the 0.5 FAR threshold. In addition, FAR 
limits in the General Plan are only one method to control intensity. Intensity is also 
regulated by the zoning ordinance through development standards such as height, 
setbacks, and parking. Due to zoning standards and individual site constraints 
(topography, environmental resources, etc.) it is often not possible to develop to the 
maximum General Plan FAR limit. More importantly, FAR limits in the General Plan are 
not entitlements; rather, FAR represents a maximum level of intensity that may be 
achieved if all other development standards are satisfied and authorized by the Planning 
Commission or City Council through the discretionary review process. 

As a first step to develop proposed FARs, staff examined commercial sites throughout the 
City to establish a range of baseline FARs. As shown in Attachment 4, most commercially 
developed properties in the City have FARs above the current 0.5 limit. Additionally, and 
in recognition of the General Plan's 20+ year planning horizon, the Draft General Plan 
Update contains a limited provision for an "Increased FAR Allowance" on 41 st Avenue and 
the Village to provide flexibility for future City Councils and Planning Commissions to 
approve well-designed projects which offer significant community and economic benefits. 
A comparison of existing and proposed FARs is shown on the following table: 

-FAR RANGE EXISTING FAR 
PROPOSED "INCREASED FAR 

DESIGNATION OF EXISTING IN GENERAL 
BULIDINGS PLAN 

FAR ALLOWANCE" 

Village Mixed-Use 0.4-2.5 NjA 2.0 3.0 

Neighborhood Mixed Use 0.4-0.8 0.5 1.0 NjA 
Regional Commercial 0.3-1.0 0.5 2.0 3.0 

Community Commercial 0.3-2.0 0.5 1.5 2.5 

Visitor Accommodations 0.2-0.3 0.5 0.5 NjA 
Industrial 0.2-0.4 0.5 0.5 NjA 

Based on feedback from the GPAC and members of the public, the following restrictions 
were added to the draft General Plan Update to further limit the eligibility for "Increased 
FAR Allowance": 

• Hotel uses only in the Village Mixed-Use designation; 
• Only properties on the west side of 41 st Avenue or at the 41 st Ave/Capitola Road 

Intersection; 

R:\CITY CQUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\OS 08 14\GPU\GPU Staff Report.docx 

-17-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 8,2014 
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

• Requests for "Increased FAR Allowance" would require City Council approval 
based on findings: 

o Increased FAR would result in a superior project with substantial community 
benefit; 

o The project would significantly enhance economic vitality; and, 
o The project is designed to minimize adverse impacts to neighboring properties. 

Vii/age FAR Limits 
There are very limited opportunities for increased FAR in the Village. The former theater 
site, if developed with a hotel, may require a FAR limit of 2.5 or more. The only other site 
which could potentially accommodate a higher intensity is the mercantile, which has a 
relatively low FAR and is one of the few Village properties which have surface parking. 
The proposed General Plan Update would restrict the "Increased FAR Allowance" in the 
Village to hotels. Staff believes this is a reasonable approach, unless the City Council 
wishes to allow consideration of a future commercial or mixed-use project on the 
mercantile site. 

41st Avenue FAR Limits 
There has been considerable discussion in previous hearings regarding FAR limits and 
proposed provisions for an "Increased FAR Allowance." A variety of opinions have been 
expressed regarding appropriate locations along the 41 st Avenue corridor which could 
accommodate increased FAR without creating impacts to nearby residential 
neighborhoods. To examine this issue in more detail, staff evaluated the commercial
residential interface along each side of 41 st Avenue. An exhibit showing the proximity 
between commercial and residential zoned properties along 41 st Avenue is included as 
Attachment 5. 

Based on staff's analysis, both sides of the 41 st Avenue corridor has commercially zoned 
properties which could accommodate new street-facing development while providing a 
minimum 1 ~O-foot setback between adjacent residential neighborhoods. Accordingly, staff 
believes either side of 41 st Avenue could be developed with higher intensity projects which 
enhance the pedestrian experience along the street frontage while maintaining the 
integrity of existing residential neighborhoods. 

Planning Commission FAR Recommendation 
The Planning Commission voted 3-2 to recommend modest reductions in proposed FAR 
limits and to retain limits for "Increased FAR Allowance" to the west side of 41 st Avenue 
and hotels in the Village. The Commission also considered a motion to eliminate the 
"Increased FAR Allowance," but the motion failed by a 3-2 vote. The FAR limits 
recommended by the Planning Commission are shown in the following table in 
strikeout/underline: . . 

PLANNING COMMISSION FAR RECOMMENDATION 

DESIGNATION EXISTING FAR PROPOSED FAR 
"INCREASED FAR 

ALLOWANCE" 

Village Mixed-Use NjA . 2.0 3.0 

Neighborhood Mixed Use 0.5 1.0 NjA 
Regional Commercial 0.5 ~1.5 J.(} 2.0 

Community Commercial 0.5 ±.& 1.0 Ul...5. 
Visitor Accommodations 0.5 0.5 NjA 

Industrial 0.5 0.5 NjA 

R:\CI1Y COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\OS 08 14\GPU\GPU Staff Report.docx 

-18-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 8,2014 
GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

Planning Commission members were in general agreement about the FAR limits in the 
Village and supported allowances for increased FAR limits for hotels. The Commissioners 
were more divided about FARs in the 41 st Avenue corridor, particularly in the Community 
Commercial designation south of Capitola Road. The Commission ultimately voted to 
reduce the FAR in this area to 1.5, although some commissioners felt a 2.0 limit would be 
appropriate given the presence of the Fairfield and Best Western Inns, both of which 
support approximate FARs of 2.0 and the potential for additional similar hotels in that 
area. Planning Commissioners also had concerns about expanding the "Increased FAR 
Allowance" to properties along the east side of 41 st Avenue, citing compatibility issues Vliith 
adjacent residential neighborhoods and the potential for it to prompt development with 
excessive bulk and scale. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The General Plan Update contains numerous action items, which if 
adopted, would individually and collectively require funding to implement. The actual cost 
to implement the General Pian's action items is difficult to estimate given its 20+ year 
planning horizon. The City has a revenue source to implement and maintain the General 
Plan through the General Plan Maintenance Fee. No additional funds or staffing is 
currently requested to implement the General Plan Update. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution to certify the General Plan Update EIR and adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and 

Reporting Program and Statement of Overriding Considerations; 
2. Resolution to adopt the General Plan Update; 

3. Public comments and staff responses; 

4. Floor Area Ratio information; 

5. 41 st Avenue Commercial and Residential Property Exhibit; 

6. Historic Background Narrative Prepared by Carolyn Swift; 

7. General Plan public comments to City Council. 

NOTE: Copies of the General Plan Update and Environmental Impact Report have been 
separately distributed to the City Council. Digital copies may be viewed and obtained at 
www.plancapitola.com 

Report Prepared By: Richard Grunow 
Community Development Director 

Reviewed and Fo4~.Cd 
By City Manager:w 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\OS 0814\GPU\GPU Staff Report.docx 

-19-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-20-



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA CERTIFYING 
THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN 
UPDATE, AND ADOPTING A MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 
PROGRAM, A STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS, AND 
ASSOCIATED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT FINDINGS 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Preparation (NOP) of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for 
the General Plan Update was issued by the City of Capitola Community Development 
Department on July 2, 2013; and 

,,' ._' 

WHEREAS, a Public Scoping Meeting was held on July 23,<~013i\tf> receive comments 
regarding the scope of issues to be addressed in the EIR; and'~' ' 

WHEREAS, a Draft EIR was prepared and issued for. agency and public review and 
comment on December 19,2013, for a 60-day review period that endeqon February 19, 2014; 
and ,,:;;, 

";" ::: 

WHEREAS, thirteen comment letters were/iteEeiveC:f on the Draft,~;,EIR from private 
individuals and public entities; and ct,;1

C

'7" 0&" • <"; fyI' 

WHEREAS, a Final EIR incorporating iaU ."".,>wents :f$c~ived on the~raft EIR and 
responses to comments was issued on March 28, 201'2fe<" /<:;"'"t", J 

WHEREAS, the completed Final EIR consists o,,:~:December 19, 2013, Draft EIR, 
comments received on the document, fihcl[esponses to co'Nirrr~pts contained in the March 28, 
2014 Final EIR, modifications made to the;te}:<tof the Draft EJ'&t{'that ~are also included in the 

,,' .. ",' '. """":'V 

Final EIR, appendices to the Draft andfihal, EIRs, items incl\J<:t~a in attachments to this 
Resolution, and all documents and resourc'e~ refere,riced,and incsjrporated by reference in the 
EIR and \. .,' , 

WHEREAS, the/4~1I')alf~IR has beencompletedi~ 'accordance with the California 
/' ,]0"'",<///,;",,\ {' 

En~iro~mental. Qua~~~;Ac! (G~~~), P~blic. R~s~urces Code S~ction 21000 et seq., the 
GUidelines for Imp~tT:i~Ylt~tlon of'1~liy Californl~ E~v,lro~mental Quality Act (14 Cal. Code Regs. 
Section 15000 et seq.){tI,1 "State"CEQA GUideli1l9s'1J and local procedures adopted pursuant 
thereto; and' , t'j;";t'", cJ 

W!ili(t~.~,the Plannin~;,~~~J~iS~i6W{~~jd a public hearing on the project and Final EIR 
on April 3, 2014, ahdissued rec0tnm~ndations to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Councilcon,sTdered the Final EIR at a publicly noticed meeting on 
May 8,20'14; " / 

" ,. ,J/ 
WHER~~S, on MaY;!:i~ 2014, the City Council in Resolution No. __ certified the Final 

EIR for the General Plan Update; and 
'''-,,- ~ .. :;: ", ' .. ".;,' 

WHEREAS, the Fin~VEIR identified certain significant and potentially significant adverse 
environmental impaotsthat would be caused by the adoption and implementation of the General 
Plan Update; and 

WHEREAS, the Final EIR outlined various mitigation measures that would substantially 
lessen or avoid the project's significant effects on the environment, as well as alternatives to the 
project as proposed which would provide some environmental advantages; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola is required, pursuant to CEQA, to adopt all feasible 
mitigation measures or feasible project alternatives that can substantially lessen or avoid any 
significant environmental effects of a proposed project while simultaneoLisly fulfilling project 
objectives; and 

WHEREAS, Public Resource Code section 21081, subdivision (a), requires a public 
agency, before approving a project for which an EIR has been prepared and certified, to adopt 
findings specifying whether mitigation measures and, in some instances, alternatives discussed 
the EIR, have been adopted or rejected as infeasible; and -21-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

WHEREAS, Exhibit A of this Resolution includes a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations prepared in order to satisfy the requirements of Public Resources Code section 
21081; and 

WHEREAS, the Statement of Overriding Considerations explains, the City Council, 
reflecting the advice of City staff, the Planning Commission, and extensive input from the 
community, has expressed its intention to approve the proposed project; and 

WHEREAS, in taking this course, the City Council has acted consistent with the CEQA 
mandate to consider project mitigations and/or alternatives as a means of substantially reducing 
or avoiding the environmental effects of projects as proposed while simultaneously fulfilling 
project objectives; and 

'-;-~* 

WHEREAS, some of the significant and potentially sig . cant environmental effects 
associated with this project, as approved, can either be su. '. IIy reduced or avoided 
through the inclusion of mitigation measures proposed in the '\~~~l1d 

WHEREAS, some of the significant environmentaL e~Gts of the'~BEoject can be fully 
avoided (Le., rendered less than significant by the adoptiol:l40f feasible ii:fi~i9ation measures); 
and .~ 

'. --<__ -;~"- ~----~:::-;-~:it:j~;;,.. _ % 

WHEREAS, the City Council in approvi'l9lheprojectasproposed inte'r1~~,t9/adopt all 
mitigation measures set forth in the Mitigation Monitoring~~d ~§PQ~ng Program;~~'rfd 

WHEREAS, those significant effects that cannot be;;avoided or substantially reduced by 
the adoption of feasible mitigation mea~Yres will necessarily remain significant and unavoidable; 
and %2. . . . .. \, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has4m!0§.9, for reasons set f5rth in the Statement of 
Overriding Considerations, that none of tj3 arferl'latiY~l? addre~sed in the Final EIR would 
substantially reduce unavoidable environment§1 effectswhil~Clls9J'fulfilling the project objectives; 

and .... . '\/;'. \,/' 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires, i~\~pcordance ~ith CEQA, to declare that, despite 

the occurrence of sJghific:ant unavoidable envirori'Q,ental effect associated with the project, there 
exist certain overrit{ing economic; $ocial and other;cgA'siderations for approving the project that 
the City Council, in its legislative c~pacity, believ~~;justify the occurrence of those impacts and 
render thell}.~c:ceRtable, and .. . .. 

VV~·EREA§,· ... ;,:::Al~>:<hibit A: ?ttached hereto includes a Statement of Overriding 
Consid~(ations specifYii1£l:.:,tt1e econotnic'ksocial, and other benefits that render acceptable the 
si9JlifiQ'a'nt unavoidable e"n~~rQ,nmental effects associated with the mitigated project, and 

'W~~aEAS, the 2'ftv Countil recognizes the City's obligation, pursuant to Public 
Resources';;G'gge section 2·.~ 081.6, subdivision (a), to ensure the monitoring of all adopted 
miti.gati.on mea$~,~~s necesJr~iy to substantially lessen or avoid the significant effects of the 
proJect, and .. " '. ,41/ 

WHEREAS,<i~JJibit 8 to this Resolution contains the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program Pl~pared in order to comply with § 21081.6, subdivision (a) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Capitola that: 

• The City Council certifies that the Final EIR has been completed in compliance with 
CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines and local procedures adopted pursuant thereto. 

• The City Council hereby finds and declares the Final EIR reflects the independent 
judgment and analysis of the City Council, as required by Public Resources Code 
Section 21082.1. 

\\sunlight\SHARED\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\05 08 14\GPU\Attachment A - EIR Resolution Rev 
Su FINAL.doc 

-22-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

The City Council has independently reviewed and analyzed the Final EIR and 
considered the information contained therein and all comments, written and oral, 
received prior to approving this Resolution. 

The City Council therefore hereby certifies the Final Environmental Impact Report 
for the General Plan Update. 

In approving this Resolution, the City Council adopts Exhibit A attached hereto in 
order to satisfy its obligations under Public Resources Code sections 21002 and 
21081; 

In approving this Resolution, the City of Capitola adopts E;xmibit A attached hereto in 
order to satisfy its obligations under Public Resou~c~s;;:e0Qes sections 21081, 
subdivision (b) and CEQA Guidelines section 15093.;(,' 

In approving this Resolution, the City Council a· "{8'aXbi,bit B attached hereto in 
order to satisfy its obligations under Public ourc~§'> ode section 21081.6 
subdivision (a); and 

\~ 

The City Council hereby approves the Project and directs Cit tat[ to file with the 
County Clerk and the Office of Planning and Re~earch in Sacrarr{~Plt9c~@iNotice of 
Determination commencing a 30-daystatute of limitations for any legal;>¢tfullenge to 
the Projects based on alleged non-compliance withC6QA If" 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the a~ove and foregoing Res<.>lution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capit91~,,"pt its regular meeting held on the 8th day of May, 
2014, by the following vote: '{~;~1'" 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT/ABSTAIN: 

',. ;' 

'·"'f .;/' »'. , .. 

'~t,./ 
\f:~</ 

\>:;,-
-", -,.~ 

ATTEST:. , CMC 
Susan Sneddon, ~it~ Clerk 

. ' , '~ 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

\\sunlight\SHARED\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\05 08 14\GPU\AUachment A - EIR Resolution Rev 
Su FINAL.doc 

-23-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



EXHIBIT A - GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR FINDINGS 

THE CITY OF CAPITOLA'S FINDINGS 
FOR THE CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT REQUIRED UNDER 
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

(Public Resources Code, Section 21000 et seq.) 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The City of Capitola ("City") prepared a Draft and a Final Environmental Impact Report (collectively, "EIR") 

for the Capitola General Plan Update (proposed Plan), which proposes a revised organization structure, 

consolidated land use designations, along with adding an optional economic development element, in addition 
to the State mandated topics of land use, circulation, housing; open space, conservation, safety, and noise to 

guide future development and redevelopment in Capitola. 

The EIR addresses the potential environmental effects associated with the proposed Plan. The Findings, 
recommendations, and a statement of overriding considerations set forth below ("Findings") are adopted by 

the City of Capitola City Council ("City Council") as the City's findings under the California Environmental 

Quality Act ("CEQA") (pub. Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.) and the CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs., 

title 14, § 15000 et seq.) relating to the proposed Plan. The Findings provide the written analysis and 

conclusions of this City Council regarding the Plan's environmental impacts, mitigation measures, alternatives 

to the Plan, and the overriding considerations, which, in this City Council's view, justify approval of the Plan, 
despite its environmental effects. 

II. GENERAL FINDINGS 

A. Procedural Background 

Pursuant to CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, the City determined that an EIR would be required for the 

proposed Plan. On July 2, 2013, the City issued a Notice of Preparation for the EIR which was circulated to 
responsible agencies and interested groups and individuals for review and comment. A copy of this Notice is 

included in Appendix A of the General Plan Update Draft EIR ("Draft EIR"). 

The Draft EIR was published for public review and comment on December 19, 2013 and was filed with the 

State Office of Planning & Research under State Clearinghouse No. 2013072002. The Draft EIR was made 

available for review and comment by interested persons and public agencies through February 19, 2014. 

The City prepared written responses to the comments received during the comment period and included these 

responses in the Final Environmental Impact Report ("Final EIR"), which was made available for public 

review on March 28, 2014. 

B. Record of Proceedings and Custodian of Record 

The record, upon which all findings and determinations related to the approval of the Plan are based, includes 

the following: 

1. The EIR and all documents referenced in or relied upon by the EIR. 

2. All information (including written evidence and testimony) provided by City staff to the City Council 

relating to the EIR, the approvals, and the Plan. 

Page 1 of19 

-24-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

3. All information (including written evidence and testimony) presented to the City Council by the 
environmental consultant and sub consultants who prepared the EIR or incorporated into reports 

presented to the City Council. 

4. All information (including written evidence and testimony) presented to the City from other public 
agencies related to the Plan or the EIR. 

5. All applications, letters, testimony, and presentations relating to the Project. 

6. All information (including written evidence and testimony) presented at any City hearing or City 

workshop related to the Plan and the EIR. 

7. All City-adopted or City-prepared land use plans, ordinances, including without limitation general plans, 

specific plans, and ordinances, together with environmental review documents, findings, mitigation 
monitoring programs, and other documents relevant to planned growth within the area. 

8. The :Nlitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Plan. 

9. All other documents composing the record pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21167.6(e). 

The custodian of the documents and other materials that constitute the record of the proceedings upon which 

the City's decisions are based is Richard Grunow, Community Development Director, or his designee. Such 

documents and other material are located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010. 

C. Consideration and Certification of the EIR 

In accordance with CEQA, the City Council certifies that the EIR has been completed in compliance with 

CEQA. The City Council has independently reviewed the record and the EIR prior to certifying the EIR and 

approving the Plan. By these findings, the City Council confirms, ratifies, and adopts the findings and 
conclusions of the EIR as supplemented and modified by these findings. The EIR and these findings represent 

the independent judgment and analysis of the City and the City Council. The City Council recognizes the EIR 
may contain clerical errors. The City Council reviewed the entirety of the EIR and bases its determination on 

the substance of the information it contains. The City Council certifies that the EIR is adequate to support the 

approval of the action that is the subject of the staff report to which these CEQA findings are attached. The 

City Council certifies that the EIR is adequate to support approval of the Plan described in the EIR, each 
component of the Plan described in the EIR, any variant of the Plan described in the EIR, any minor 

modifications to the Plan or variants of the Plan described in the EIR and the components of the Plan. 

D. Absence of Significant New Information 

The City Council recognizes the Final EIR incorporates information obtained and produced after the Draft 
EIR was completed, and that the EIR contains additions, clarifications, and modifications. The City Council 

has reviewed and considered the Final EIR and all of this information. The Final EIR does not add significant 

new information to the Draft EIR that would require recirculation of the EIR under CEQA. The new 

information added to the EIR does not involve a new significant environmental impact, a substantial increase 

in the severity of an environmental impact, or a feasible mitigation measure or alternative considerably different 

from others previously analyzed that the project sponsor declines to adopt and that would clearly lessen the 

significant environmental impacts of the Plan. No information indicates that the Draft EIR was inadequate or 

conclusory or that the public was deprived of a meaningful opportunity to review and comment on the Draft 

EIR. Thus, recirculation of the EIR is not required. The City Council finds that the changes and modifications 
made to the EIR after the Draft EIR was circulated for public review and comment do not individually or 

collectively constitute significant new information within the meaning of Public Resources Code Section 

21092.1 or the CEQA Guidelines Section 15088.5. 

Page 2 of 19 

-25-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

E. Severability 

If any term, provision, or portion of these Findings or the application of these Findings to a particular situation 
is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of 

these Findings, or their application to other actions related to the General Plan Update, shall continue in full 

force and effect unless amended or modified by the City. 

III. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING SIGNIFICANT AND 
UNAVOIDABLE IMPACTS 

As authorized by Public Resources Code Section 21081and CEQ1-\ Guidelines Section 15091, the Final ElR is 

required to identify the significant impacts that cannot be reduced to a less-than-significant level through 

mitigation measures. Based upon the Final EIR, public comments, and the entire record before the City, the 

City finds that the proposed Plan would cause the following significant and unavoidable impacts after the 

implementation of mitigation measures with respect to the impacts identified below. As explained in the 

Statement of Overriding Considerations, these effects are considered to be acceptable when balanced against 

the economic, legal, social, technological, and/or other benefits of the proposed Plan. 

A. Air Quality 

Potential Impact AlR-2. As disCtlssed on pages 4.2-17 through 4.2-22 o/the Draft EIB. build out o/the proposed Plall could 
result ill increases to regional airpollutallts exceedillg air quality standards established 1?J the MBUAPCD. The thresholds 0/ 
significance that have bem recommended 1?J the MBUAPCD IVere established for individual prq/ects al1d do 110t app!J to 
Ctlmulative development or multiple prq/ects, air quality impacts IVould be regional and 110t cOlifined to the Capitola city limits; 
therifore, given the Dnift EIR IVas programmatic alld did Ilot cOllsider prq/ect-specific impacts, the thresholds did Ilot app!J at a 
pm grammatic leveL Thus, future site-specific developmellt proposals IVould be evaillated forpotelltial air emissiolls oJlce development 
details have been deter milled aIJd arc available. HO/vevel; it IVas detelmillCd that developmellt prq/ects allO/ved uIJder the pmposed 
PIaJJ IVould illcrease regiollal pollutants over Ctl17"IIIlt cOllditiollS, specifical!J PMIO alld PM2.5• Although the pmposed Plan i1lcludes 

several goals, policies, and actiolls iJJtmded to millimize air quality lisles, impacts for the City 0/ Capitola IVould be sigl1ificaJlt. 

Mitigation Measure. As discussed on page 4.2-31 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 

available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact AIR-2 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 
stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 
the Plan related to compliance with MBUAPCD's air quality standards. 

Potelltial Impact AlR-6. As disCtlssed 011 pages 4.2-27 thlvugh 4.2-29 0/ the Draft EIB. build out 0/ the pmposed Plall could 
result ill il1creases to regiollal air pollutallts exceedil1g air quality stalldards established 1?J the MBUAPCD. GiveJl that the 
thresholds 0/ significallce that have beell recommmded 1?J the MBUAPCD IVel"fJ established for individual prq/ects a11d do 110t app!J 
to Ctlmulative development or multiple prq/ects, air quality impacts IVould be l"fJgiollal alld 110t cOlifilled to the Capitola city limits. 
Thus, future site-specific development plvposals IVould be evaluated forpotelltial air emissiolls Ollce development details have beell 
detelmil1ed alld aJ"fJ available. H01vever, it IVas detelmitlCd that developmellt prq/ects allolVed under the proposed P lall Ivould 
illcrease regiol/al polilltallts over Ctl17"IIIlt cOl/ditiolls, specifical!J PMIO alld PM2.5. Although the plvposed Plall includes several goals, 
policies, and actiolls illtmded to mil1imize sir quality lisks, impacts for the City 0/ Capitola Jvould be significallt. 

Page 3 of19 

-26-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

lVIitigation Measure. As discussed on page 4.2-31 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 
available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact AIR-6 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 
stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse cumulative 
impacts of the Plan related to compliance with the MBUAPCD's air quality standards. 

All other air quality impacts were less than significant without mitigation (see Draft EIR pages 4.2-1 to 4.2-31). 

B. Hydrology and Water Quality 

Potetltial Impact HYDRO-2. As discussed 011 pages 4.7.19 thlvugh 4.4-20, futurl! deuelopmetlt withill the Plall Area could 
result ill all itnpact to glvulldwater mpplies as a result if increased water demand associated 11lith itnplemOl1tatioll if the plvposed 
Plall. FUlthel; the SqCWD allticipates that demal1d will exceed sustainable gIVulldlllater supplY in 2020 alld bryond. Although 
the proposed Plall I1l0uld rcqui1'l! itnplemelltatiol1 if liD guideli11Cs for development that would il1c1ude the usc if per/Jleable pavillg 
materialr alld Oil-site iTifiltratioll to inc1'l!ase the potelltial for gIVuJldwatel; supplies I1l0uld still be exceeded. Thus, the impact to 
glvulldwater water supplY would remain significant. 

lVIitigation Measure. As discussed on page 4.7-32 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 

available to mitigate this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City f"mds that Impact HYDRO-2 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more 
fully stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 
the Plan related to substantially depleting groundwater supplies or interfering substantially with 
groundwater recharge. 

Pote11tial Itnpact HYDRO-9. As discussed 011 pages 4.7-29 th,vugh 4.7-31 if the Draft ErR, COJlstruction activities associated 
with buildout if the plvposed Plan would cause a sigllificallt cumulative itnpact to kJdIVlogy alld Illater quality. 

Mitigation Measure. As discussed on page 4.7-32 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 

available to mitigate this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact HYDRO-9 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more 
fully stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 

the Plan related to cumulative impacts to hydrology and water quality. 

All other hydrology and water quality-related impacts were less than significant without mitigation (see Draft 

EIR pages 4.7-1 to 4.7-32). 

C. Transportation and Traffic 

PotOl1tial Itnpact TRANS-1. As disCllssed 011 pages 4.13-20 thIVugh 4.13-28 if the Drqft ErR, some illtersections 
(intersections WhaifRd and Cliff Dr. / Stockton Ave; POlter S t. / Highwqy 1 NB ramps; Monterry Ave/Capitola Ave; Capitola 
Ave/Stockton Ave; alld Park Ave/KeJ1J1C{fy Dl:) would operate at an ullacceptable LOS standard ullder the proposed Plan 

Page 4 of19 

-27-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

buildout cOllditions ill 2035. Although sOJlJe iJJJjJIVueJlJeJlts idelltified in the plvposed Plall would iJlJp'VUe the LOS stalldards to 

acceptable levels, the illtersectioll of POIier Street alld HighwC!} 1 NB RaJJJjJs is ul1der CaltnJlls jUlisdictiol1; therefore, 

iJJJjJleJlJeJ1tati()J1 of iJlJpIVveJlJeJ1ts at this intersectiol1 is outside of the jUlisdictioll rif the City of Capitola. Given that iJJJjJleJlJetltatiol1 
of the identified iJlJpIVVeJlJellt necessary to JlJitigate to a less thal1 sigllificallt level canllot be guaral1teed, alld JlJC!} be cOllsidered 

iI!feasible by Caltrcllls, the iJlJpact is cOllsidered sigllifical1t. 

Ivlitiglltion Measure. The following mitigation measure, discussed in the Draft EIR on page 4.13-35, is 

hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided in the Mitigation and Monitoring Reporting 

Program: 

Ivlitigation Measure TRANS-1: To mitigate this impact, an additional westbound right turn lane would 

be required to be constructed on the Highway 1 northbound off-ramp at Porter Street. With 

implementation of this improvement, the intersection would operate at an acceptable LOS C during the 

AIvI and PM peak hour under proposed Plan in conditions in 2035. The improvements necessary to 
mitigate this impact to a less than significant level would require the approval of Caltrans, and 

implementation of the improvement may not be feasible. As there are no certain and feasible mitigation 

measures are available to reduce this impact, a significant and unavoidable impact would remain. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact TRANS-1 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more 
fully stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the 'environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 
the Plan related to intersection operations degrading to an unacceptable LOS E at the Porter Street 
and Highway 1 northbound ramps intersection during the AM peak hour in 2035. 

PoteJItial IJJJjJact TRANS-6. As discussed 011 pages 4.13-34 thlvugh 4.13-35 of the Drqft ErR, iJlJpleJlJeJ1tatioll of the pIVposed 

Platl would result ill additiollal cuJlJulativeIY cOllsiderable iJJJjJacts. IJJJjJleJlJeJ1tatioJl of the proposed Plall would result itl sigllificant 

iJJJjJacts at jive rif the sturfy illtersections and although iJJJjJIVveJlJents have bem idlll1tified to illJjJlVve the LOS to acceptable levels, 

the POIier Street alld HighwC!} 1 NB TaJJJjJs is ullder Caltral1s jurisdictioll al1d therifore canl10t be guaral1teed to be illJjJlvved 

since it is out rif the City rif Capitola jurisdictiol1. 

Mitiglltion Measure. As discussed on page 4.13-35 of the Draft EIR, the mitigation measure is to 

implement Ivlitigation Measure TRANS-I. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City imds that TRANS-l would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 
stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 
the Plan related to intersection operations degrading to an unacceptable LOS E at the Porter Street 
and Highway 1 northbound ramps intersection during the AM peak hour in 2035. 

All other transportation and traffic-related impacts were less than significant without mitigation (see Draft EIR 

pages 4.13-1 to 4.13-35). 

D. Utilities and Service Systems 

Potlll1tial IJJJjJact UTIL-l. As discussed on pages 4.14-16 thIVugh 4.14-21 of the Draft EIR, buildout of the plvposed Plal1 

JlJC!} result ill il1st!lJiciellt Ivater stJjJplies fivJlJ existil1g III1titleJlJeJ1is al1d resources ill 2035. The SqCWD anticipates water deJlJand 

exceeding sustainable gIVul1dwater supplY itl 2020 and bryol1d, thus, this iJJJjJact lvould reJlJain sigl1ifical1t ill the City of Capitola. 

Page 5 of 19 

-28-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

lVIitiglltion Measure. As discussed on page 4.14-23 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 

available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact UTIL-l would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 

stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 

economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 

the Plan related to insufficient water supplies from existing entitlements and resources in 2035. 

PoteJ1tial Impact UITL-2. As discussed on pages 4.14-21 through 4.14-22 if the Draft EIR, the proposed PlanlVould require 
the cOllstmctioll if a IlelV desalillatioll facility in order to meet Ivater demalld associated lVith the proposed P lall. GiveJ1 the 
availability if future lVater supplies jivm the desalination plant is ullceltaill and demand Ivould exceed available supplies lVithout 

the plant, the impact Ivould remaill sigllificallt ill the City if Capitola. 

lVIitiglltion Measure. As discussed on page 4.14-23 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 

available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact UTIL-2 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 

stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 

economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 

the Plan related to the construction of new water facilities or expansion of expansion of existing 

facilities. 

Potential Impact UTIL--3. As discussed 011 pages 4.14-22 thIVugh 4.14-23 if the Drqft EIR, the pIVposed Plan, in 
combination lVith past, presCllt, and reasonabfy foreseeable developm(!JIt, 1llQY result ill sigllificant cumulative impacts lVith respect to 
Ivater suppfy. Given the proposed Plan Ivollld conflibute to all increased cumulative demand for lVater suppfy, and became this 

illcreased demand lVould exceed long-term supplY under normal circumstallces, the impact Ivould remain sigllificallt. 

lVIitiglltion Measure. As discussed on page 4.14-23 of the Draft EIR, there is no mitigation measure 

available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 

the City finds that Impact UTIL-3 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 

stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 

economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 

the Plan related to cumulative impacts to water supply. 

All other utilities impacts were less than significant without mitigation (see Draft EIR pages 4.14-1 to 4.14-50). 

E. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Potmtial Impact GRG-l. As discussed 011 pages 4.15-14 th,vllgh 4.15-15 if the Drqft EIR, implemeJ1tation if the pIVposed 

PlanlVould gCllerate GRG emissions that Ivould significantlY contribute to global climate change impacts ill Califomia. GivCll that 
Capitola lVould expCli(!JIce an increase if 3,869 MTCO;!! ifGRG emissiolls ill 2035 ill the absCllce ifGRG reduction measures, 
lVhich lVould exceed the 2,000 MTCO;!! threshold plvposed f?y the MBUAPCD, impacts Ivould remain significant. 

Mitiglltion Measure. The following mitigation measure, discussed on pages 4.15-24 to 4.15-26 of the 

Draft EIR, is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided in the Mitigation and Monitoring 

Reporting Program: 

Page 6 of19 

-29-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

:i'vlitigation Measure GHG-1: The City of Capitola shall prepare a Climate Action Plan within 18 months 

of adopting the proposed Capitola General Plan update. The Climate Action Plan shall include a 

community inventory of GHG emission sources, and a quantifiable GHG emissions reduction target for 
2020 that is consistent with the statewide GHG reduction target under Assembly Bill 32 (2006) and an 
interim target for the General Plan horizon year 2035 that is consistent with the statewide GHG 

reduction goal under Executive Order S-03-05, as outlined in CARB's 2013 Scoping Plan Update. The 

City shall monitor progress toward the GHG emissions reduction goal and prepare reports every 5 years 
detailing that progress. Measures listed below shall be considered for all new development between the 

time of adoption of the proposed Capitola General Plan update and adoption of the Climate Action 

Plan. Local measures considered in the Climate Action Plan may include: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Require all municipal fleet purchases to be fuel-efficient vehicles for their intended use based on the 
fuel type, design, size, and cost efficiency. 

\Vork with MvIBAG to create a Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community Strategy 

(lVITP /SCS) that will reduce GHG emissions generated from transportation in the region. 

Revise the Recycling Ordinance to require at least 50 percent diversion of non-hazardous 

construction waste from disposal, as required by the California Green Building Code. 

Amend the Green Building Ordinance to encourage building designs that minimize waste and 

consumption in construction projects. 

Require new development and major renovations to use energy-efficient appliances that meet 

ENERGY STAR standards and energy-efficient lighting technologies that exceed Title 24 standards 

by 30 percent. 

• Amend the Zoning Code to require new development and major renovations to incorporate 
measures that reduce energy use through solar orientation by taking advantage of shade, prevailing 

winds, landscaping, and sunscreens. 

• Implement incentives for the use of drought-tolerant landscaping and recycled water for landscape 
irrigation. 

• Require all new landscaping irrigation systems installed in the city to be automated, high-efficient 
irrigation systems to reduce water use and require use of bubbler irrigation; low-angle, low-flow 

spray heads; or moisture sensors. 

• Conduct periodic energy efficiency audits of existing municipal buildings by checking, repairing, 
and readjusting heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems; lighting; water heating equipment; 

insulation; and weatherization. 

• Continue to implement intelligent transportation systems, roundabouts, signal timing and 
synchronization, and other efficiency methods that decrease idling time and congestion. 

• Investigate partnership with programs such as Zipcar to support use of energy efficient or electric 
vehicles for city residents. 

• Continue to work with county and regional transportation leaders to explore options for additional 

funding sources on the regional level to support multi-modal transportation infrastructure. 

• Develop a Transportation Demand Management Plan (TDM) for City and local employees .. A 
TDM Program would offer incentives to encourage the use of alternative modes of transportation 

- by City and local employees (e.g., in the Village, Bay Avenue, and 41st Avenue areas). Free bus 

Page 7 of19 

-30-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

passes, reimbursement for not using a parking space, emergency cab services, etc. will help reduce 
parking demand and reduce GHG emissions through reduced commuter traffic. 

Continue to work with school districts and solicit input from elementary, middle, and high school 
parents to identify opportunities to decrease emissions from school commutes. 

Require bicycle parking facilities and on-site showers in major non-residential development and 

redevelopment projects. Major development projects include buildings that would accommodate 
more than 50 employees, whether in a single business or multiple tenants; major redevelopment 

projects include projects that change 50 percent or more of the square footage or wall space. 

Provide incentives, such as giving priority in plan review, processing, and field inspection services, 
for new and existing commercial and residential projects that provide parking spaces reserved for 

electric vehicles and have a charging connection. 

Encourage grey water use and rainwater catchment systems where their use could accomplish water 
conservation objectives through the following measures: 

o Integrate new California grey water building/plumbing codes into the Green Building 
Ordinance. 

o Adopt a residential rainwater collection policy and update the Zoning Code as needed to 
support permitting and regulation of residential rainwater systems. 

o Investigate emerging technologies that reuse water within residential and commercial 

buildings and make that information available to the public via the City's website and/or 
brochures. 

o Pursue funding sources to provide rebates and reduce permit fees for cisterns. 

o Provide outreach support for water-efficient landscaping programs, classes, and businesses. 

In partnership with PG&E and local alternative energy companies, develop an Alternative Energy 

Development Plan that includes citywide measurable goals and identifies the allowable and 
appropriate alternative energy facility types within the city, such as solar photovoltaics (PV) on 

urban residential and commercial roofs and wind power facilities. As part of this plan: 

o Propose phasing and timing of alternative energy facility and infrastructure development. 

o Conduct a review of City policies and ordinances and establish a development review 

process for new alternative energy projects that ensures noise, aesthetic, and other potential 
land use compatibility conflicts are avoided (e.g., installing tracking solar PV or angling fixed 

solar PV in a manner that reduces glare to surrounding land uses). 

o Develop a renewable energy expansion plan for the City. 

o Consider reducing permitting fees or other incentives for alternative energy development. 

o Participate in regional efforts to implement Community Choice Aggregation (CCA). 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 

the City finds that Impact GHG-l would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 

stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 

economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 
the Plan related to GHG emissions associated with the proposed Plan that would exceed 
MBAUAPCD's proposed GHG significance threshold of 2,000 MTC02e per year. 

Page 8 of19 

-31-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

Potential Impact GHG-3. As discussed 011 pages 4.15-23 thlvugh 4.15-24 rif the Drift EIR, implemClltatioll rif the pmposed 
Plall, ill combinatioll lvith past, presellt, alld reasollablY foreseeable pro/ects, lvould result in a significallt impact lvith respect to 
GHG emissiolls. 

Mitigation Measure. As discussed on page 4.15-27 of the draft EIR, implementation of lVIitigation 

Measure GHG-l also serves as lVIitigation Measure GHG-3. 

FINDING. Based on the EIR and the entire record before the City, for the reasons stated in the EIR, 
the City finds that Impact GHG-3 would remain significant and unavoidable. However, as more fully 
stated in the Statement of Overriding Considerations, the City has found that the environmental, 
economic, social and other benefits of the Plan override any remaining significant adverse impacts of 
the Plan related to cnmulative GHG impacts. 

All other GHG-related impacts were less than significant without mitigation (see Draft EIR pages 4.15-1 to 

4.13-28). 

IV. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS 
WHICH ARE MITIGATED TO A LESS-THAN-SIGNIFICANT LEVEL 

Based on the information in the administrative record of proceedings, including the Final EIR, the following 
environmental effects are found to be potentially significant but would be mitigated to a less-than-significant 

level. (CEQA Guidelines §15091) 

A. Air Quality 

PotClltial Impact AIR-I: CitJllvide cOllstruction activities under the plvposed P lall lvould result in a cOllsiderable increase rif clitena 
pollutants, alld thus, could violate air quality standards, as discussed 011 pages 4.2-15 to 4.2-17 rif the Draft EIR. 

Mitigation Measure. The following mitigation measure, discussed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.2-29 to 4.2-

30, is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided in the lVIitigation and Monitoring Reporting 
Program: 

Mitigation Measure AIR-la: Prior to issuance of any Grading Permit, the Community Development 

Director and the Building Official shall confirm that the Grading Plan, Building Plans, and specifications 

stipulate that, in compliance with MBUAPCD CEQA Air Quality Guidelines, the City shall limit areas of 

active disturbance to no more than 2.2 acres per day for initial site preparation activities that involve 

extensive earth moving activities (grubbing, excavation, rough grading), or 8.1 acres per day for activities 

that involve minimal earth moving (e.g., finish grading) during all phases of construction activities. If 

future development projects within the proposed Plan require that grading and excavation exceed those 

acreages, the City shall implement the following fugitive dust control measures per MBUAPCD CEQA 

Air Quality Guidelines: 

• 
• 

• 

• 

Water all active construction areas at least twice daily; 

Cover all trucks hauling soil, sand, and other loose materials or require all trucks to maintain at least 
2 feet of freeboard; 

Pave, apply water three times daily, or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers on all unpaved access roads, 
parking areas and staging areas at construction sites; 

Sweep daily (with water sweepers) all paved access roads, parking areas and staging areas at 
construction sites; 

Page 9 of 19 

-32-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

• Sweep streets daily (with water sweepers) if visible soil material is carried onto adjacent public 
streets; 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction areas (previously graded 

areas inactive for ten days or more); 

Enclose, cover, water twice daily or apply (non-toxic) soil binders to exposed stockpiles (dirt, sand, 

etc.); 

Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 mph; 

Install appropriate best management practices or other erosion control measures to prevent silt 

runoff to public roadways; 

Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible; 

Install wheel washers or track-out devices for all exiting trucks and equipment leaving the site; 

Limit the are subject to excavation, grading and other construction activity at anyone time; 

Post a publicly visible sign which specifies the telephone number and person to contact regarding 

dust complaints (the person shall respond to complaints and take corrective action within 48 

hours); 

Ensure that the phone number of IvfBUAPCD is visible to the public for compliance with Rule 402 

(Nuisance); and 

Comply with IvfBUAPCD Rule 403 (particulate Matter) regarding concentration, process weight 
and individual particles requirements. Discharge from any source of particulate matter shall not 

exceed of 0.15 grain per standard dry cubic foot of exhaust gas. Discharge in anyone hour from 

any source of particulate matter shall not exceed the amount shown in Rule 403 - Particulate 
Matter Table 1. Additionally, emissions from any heat transfer, incinerator, or metal salvage 

operation of particles in sufficient number to cause damage to property, which particles are of 

sufficient size and nature to be visible individually as particles on property other than that under the 
control of the person responsible for the emission, shall not be permitted. 

Mitigation Measure AIR-lb: Prior to issuance of any Grading Permit, the Director of Public \Vorks 

and the Building Official shall confirm that the Grading Plan, Building Plans,. and specifications 

stipulate that all off-road construction vehicles/equipment greater than 100 horsepower that will be 

used on site for more than one week shall: 1) be manufactured during or after 1996, and 2) shall meet 

the NOxemissions standard of 6.9 grams per brake-horsepower hour. Alternatively, the project shall 

implement a combination of the following emission reduction measures on some or all of the above 

described vehicles and equipment: 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

Use alternative fuels (such as biodiesel blends); 

Require diesel particulate matter filters on equipment; 

Require diesel oxidation catalyst on equipment; 

Require General and Industry-Specific Visible Emission limitations for abrasive blasting, drinking 
water systems, gas turbines, pile drivers and federally regulated industries for compliance with Rule 

400 (Visible Emissions); 

Install temporary electrical service whenever possible to avoid the need for independently powered 
equipment (e.g., compressors); 

Enforce state required idle restrictions (e.g., post signs). Diesel equipment standing idle for more 
than five minutes shall be turned off. This would include trucks waiting to deliver or receive soil, 

aggregate or other bulk materials. Rotating drum concrete trucks may keep their engines running 
continuously as long as they were on-site and staged away from residential areas; 

Properly tune and maintain equipment; and 

Stage large diesel-powered equipment at least 100 feet from any active land uses (e.g., residences). 

Page 10 of 19 

-33-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CECA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

FINDING: For the reasons stated in the Final EIR, the City finds that implementation of the 
mitigation measure above, together with applicable federal, State, and local regulations and proposed 

Plan policies and actions listed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.2-17, would result in a less-than

significant impact to air quality standards in the Plan Area. 

B. Cultural Resources 

PoteJltial Impact CULT-2: As discussed 011 pages 4.4-13 to 4.4-14, buildout qf the proposed Plan could result ill sigllijicallt 

impacts to kllown or ullknown archaeological resources ill the Plan Area as a result qf cOllstruction activities associated with 
implemetltatioll qf the proposed Plall. 

l'vfitigation Measure. The following mitigation measure, discussed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.4-17 to 4.4-18, 

is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided in the l'vfitigation and Monitoring Reporting Program: 

l'vfitigation Measure CULT-2: If cultural resources or human remains are accidentally discovered during 

construction, work shall be halted within 50 meters (150 feet) of the find until it can be evaluated by a 

qualified professional archaeologist and/ OJ: paleontologist. If the find is determined to be significant, 

appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated and implemented. Disturbance shall not resume until 

the significance of the cultural resource is determined and appropriate mitigations to preserve the resource 
on the site are established. If human remains are encountered during construction or any other phase of 

development, work in the area of discovery must be halted, the Santa Cruz County coroner notified, and the 

provisions of Public Resources Code 5097.98-99, Health and Safety Code 7050.5, carried out. If the remains 

are determined to be Native American, the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be notified 

within 24 hours as required by Public Resources Code 5097. 

FINDING: For the reasons stated in the Final EIR, the City finds that implementation of the 

mitigation measures listed above, together with applicable federal, State, and local regulations and 
proposed Plan policies and actions listed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.4-14, would result in a less-than

significant impact to archaeological resources. 

PoteJ1tial Impact CULT-3: As discussed 011 page 4.4-15, buifdout qf the proposed Plan could result ill sigllijicant impacts to 
unique paleontological resources or site or unique geologic features in the Plall Area as a result qf construction activities associated 
with implementatiotl qf the proposed Plan. 

l'vfitigation Measure. As discussed on page 4.4-18 of the Draft EIR, l'vfitigation Measure CULT-2 would also 
serve as l'vfitigation Measure CULT-3. 

FINDING: For the reasons stated in the Final EIR, the City finds that implementation of the 

mitigation measures listed above, together with applicable federal, State, and local regulations and 

proposed Plan policies and actions listed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.4-15, would result in a less-than

significant impact to directly or indirectly destroying a unique paleontological resource or site or 
unique geologic feature from construction activities associated with implementation of the proposed 
Plan. 

Potential Impact CULT4: The proposed Plall 1vould remit ill sigllijicant impacts related the potl!lltial disturbance to human 
remains, includillg those illten"IJd outside qfformal cemetelies, as discussed on pages 4.4-15 to 4.4-16 qfthe Drqft EIR 

l'vfitigation Measure: As discussed onpage 4.4-18 of the Draft EIR, Mitigation Measure CULT-2 would also 
serve as Mitigation Measure CULT-4. 

Page 11 of19 

-34-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

FINDING: For the reasons stated in the Final EIR, the City finds that implementation of the 

mitigation measures listed above, together with applicable federal, State, and local regulations and 

proposed Plan policies and actions listed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.4-16, would result in a less-than

significant impact with respect to the potential disturbance of human remains, including those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries. 

C. Noise 

PoteJ1tial Impact NOISE-2: As discussed on pages 4.9-16 to 4.9-17 qf the Draft EIR, the proposed Plan Jvould gellerate or 
expose persons or structures to excessive groUi/d-bome vibration from construction-related activities resultillgfrom implementatioll qf 
the proposed Plan, and thus JVould remit in a significant impact bifore mitigation. 

NIitigation Measure. The following mitigation measure, discussed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.9-27 to 4.9-28, 
is hereby adopted and will be implemented as provided in the NIitigation and Monitoring Reporting Program: 

NOISE-2a: Project applicants shall ensure by contract specifications that construction staging areas 

along with the operation of earthmoving equipment within the City would be located as far away from 

vibration and noise sensitive sites as possible. For projects that involve the displacement of more than 

100 cubic yards of soil and is located within 25 feet of an occupied structure, the Community 

Development Director or the Public Works Director may require at their discretion that a project 

specific vibration impact analysis be conducted to determine the specific vibration control mechanisms 

that would be incorporated into the project's construction bid documents, if necessary. Contract 

specifications shall be included in construction documents, which shall be reviewed by the City prior to 

issuance of a grading permit. 

NOISE-2b: The City shall require future developments to implement the following measures to reduce 

the potential for human annoyance and architectural/structural damage resulting from elevated 

groundbome noise and vibration levels. 

• 

• 

• 

Pile driving within a 50-foot radius of historic structures (as determined by the City) shall utilize 
alternative installation methods where possible (e.g., pile cushioning, jetting, preclrilling, cast-in
place systems, resonance-free vibratory pile drivers). 

The pre-existing condition of all designated historic buildings (as determined by the City) within a 
50-foot radius of proposed construction activities shall be evaluated during a preconstruction 
survey, if deemed necessary at the discretion of the Community Development Director or the 
Public Works Director. The preconstruction survey shall document conditions (photographically 

and in writing) that exist before construction begins for use in evaluating damage caused by 
construction activities. All damage shall be repaired back to its preexisting condition. 

Vibration monitoring shall be conducted prior to and during pile driving operations occurring 
within 100 feet of historic structures (as determined by the City). Every attempt shall be made to 
limit construction-generated vibration levels during pile driving and impact activities in the vicinity 
of the historic structures. 

FINDING: For the reasons stated in the Final EIR, the City finds that implementation of the 

mitigation measures listed above, together with applicable federal, State, and local regulations and 

proposed Plan policies and actions listed in the Draft EIR on pages 4.9-17, would result in a less-than
significant impact with respect to groundbome or vibration related to construction activities as a 

result of implementation of the proposed Plan. 

Page 12 of 19 

-35-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

V. IMPACTS WHICH ARE LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT 

Specific impacts within the following categories of environmental effects were found to be less than significant 
or have no impact as set forth in more detail in the Draft ElR. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15128, 

agricultural and forestry resources, and mineral resources were determined to have no likelihood of significant 

impacts and, therefore, were "scoped out," as discussed on pages 7-1 to 7-2 of the Draft ElR. 

Significant impacts are described in Sections III and IV, above. All other potential impacts identified in the 
Final ElR would be less than significant without mitigation. Therefore, further findings are not required for 

those impacts. The following impacts were found to be less than significant or have no impact before 
mitigation: 

• Aesthetics: 
o AES-1 

o AES-2 

o AES-3 

o AES-4 

o AES-5 

• Air Quality 

o AIR-3 

o AlR-4 
o AIR-5 

• Biological Resources 

o BIO-1 
o BIO-2 
o BIO-3 

o BlO-4 

o BIO-5 

o BIO-6 

• Cultural Resources 

• 

• 

• 

o CULT-1 

o CULT-S 

Geology, Soils, and Seismicity 

o GEO-1 

o GEO-2 

o GEO-3 

o GEO-4 

o GEO-S 

o GEO-6 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

0 HAZ-1 
0 HAZ-2 
0 HAZ-3 
0 HAZ-4 
0 HAZ-7 
0 HAZ-8 
0 HAZ-9 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

o HYDRO-1 

Page 13 of19 

-36-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 201 4 

0 HYDRO-3 
0 HYDRO-4 

0 HYDRO-S 
0 HYDRO-6 
0 HYDRO-7 
0 HYDRO-8 

• Land Use and Planning 
0 LAND-I 
0 LAND-2 

0 LAND-3 

0 LAND-4 

• Noise 
0 NOISE-l 

0 NOISE-3 
0 NOISE-4 

• Population and Housing 

0 POP-l 
0 POP-2 
0 POP-3 
0 POP-4 

• Public Services 
0 SVCS-l 
0 SVCS-2 
0 SVCS-3 
0 SVCS-4 
0 SVCS-S 
0 SVCS-6 

0 SVCS-7 
0 SVCS-8 

• Parks and Recreation 
0 PS-l 
0 PS-2 
0 PS-3 
0 PS-4 

• Transportation and Traffic 
0 TRANS-2 

0 TRANS-3 
0 TRANS-4 
0 TRANS-S 

• Utilities and Service Systems 

0 UTIL-4 
0 UTIL-S 
0 UTIL-6 
0 UTIL-7 

0 UTIL-8 
0 UTIL-9 
0 UTIL-I0 
0 UTIL-ll 
0 UTIL-12 

Page 14 of19 

-37-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 
CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

• Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
o GHG-2 

VI. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
IRREVERSIBLE CHANGES 

REGARDING SIGNIFICANT 

Section 21100(b)(2)(B) of CEQA requires that an EIR identify any significant effect on the environment that 
would be irreversible if the project were implemented. Section 15126.2(c) of the CEQA Guidelines identifies 

irreversible environmental changes as those involving a large commitment of nonrenewable resources or 
irreversible damage resulting from environmental accidents. 

The significant and irreversible changes of the proposed Plan are discussed on pages 7-2 through 7-7 of the 
Draft EIR. The Draft EIR explains that while development under the proposed Plan would generally maintain 

the land use pattern of the current General Plan, development under the proposed Plan would involve 

development and redevelopment of previously disturbed sited in urbanized areas. Further changes would 

result in the consolidation of residential and commercial land use designations, as well as the addition of two 

new mixed-use designations. The multiple community facilities designations have been consolidated into a 

single Public/Quasi-Public designation, while remaining designation would be maintained. Although increased 

development would be allowed under the proposed Plan, development would be relatively consistent with the 

growth anticipated for the Plan Area by MIBAG's regional growth forecasts, which the exception of housing 

units, which would be slightly greater. The Plan estimates development of housing opportunity sites consistent 
with the 2007-2014 Housing Element, which would result in greater housing growth than MIBAG's 

projections by approximately 60 more units. Based on the available sites and Capitola's development history, 
this projection is considered reasonable and appropriate. 

The Draft EIR also explain.s that implementation of the Plan would result in the commitment of limited, 

renewable resources such as lumber and water, and the irretrievable commitment of nonrenewable resources, 

such as sand, gravel, steel, lead, copper, and other metals, for the construction of buildings, infrastructure, and 

roadway improvements. Additionally, the Draft EIR explains buildout of the proposed Plan also represents a 

long-term commitment to the consumption of fossil fuels, natural gas, and gasoline for lighting, heating, and 

cooling of residences, and transportation of people within, to, and from Capitola. Although the construction 

and operation of future development under the Plan would involve the use of nonrenewable resources, 

compliance with applicable standards and regulations and implementation of Plan policies would minimize the 

use of nonrenewable resources to the maximum extent practicable, and as such, the Plan would not represent a 
large commitment of nonrenewable resources in comparison to a business as usual situation. 

VII. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING GROWTH-INDUCING 
IMPACTS 

Section 15126.2(d) of the CEQA Guidelines states that an EIR should discuss " ... the ways in which the 
Proposed [plan] could foster economic or population growth, or the construction of additional housing, either 

directly or indirectly, in the surrounding environment." Growth can be induced in a number of ways, including 

through elimination of obstacles to growth, through the stimulation of economic activity within the region, or 
through precedent-setting action. 

The growth inducing impacts of the Plan are discussed on pages 7-7 through 7-8 of the Draft EIR. As 
discussed, the City of Capitola is located in a predominantly urbanized portion of Santa Cruz County, well 

served by existing roadway and utility infrastructure. Buildout of the proposed Plan is projected to result in 
approximately 10,198 residents, 5,614 housing units, and 7,370 jobs in Capitola by 2035. Future growth under 

the proposed Plan would be concentrated primarily occur through infill development and redevelopment of 

Page 15 of19 

-38-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

currently developed sites, as described in Chapter 3 of the Draft EIR. Significant expansion of existing 

infrastructure is not anticipated. As such, the Plan would not be considered to have substantial adverse growth

inducing impacts. 

As described in the Draft EIR, growth under the proposed Plan would have beneficial effects as well. Growth 

under the Plan would provide greater opportunities for employment growth, potentially providing jobs for 
people residing in the city. Future development and redevelopment activities would be pedestrian-friendly, use 

land efficiently, and promote transportation alternatives. Additionally, numerous policies and actions in the 
proposed Plan, as described above, would serve to minimize the increase in VNIT and energy consumption that 

would result from buildout of the Plan, consistent with regional planning initiatives to address air quality and 

greenhouse gas emissions concerns. 

Overall, while implementation of the Plan would induce growth, this growth would occur incrementally over a 

period of 20 years and there is a policy framework in place at the local and regional level to ensure that 

adequate planning occurs to accommodate it. 

VIII. ALTERNATIVES 

Chapter 6 of the Draft EIR evaluated a reasonable range of potential alternatives to the proposed Plan. In 

compliance with CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, the alternatives analysis included an analysis of a No 

Project Alternative and discussed the environmentally superior alternative. The analysis examined the feasibility, 

environmental impacts, and ability of alternatives to meet the project objectives identified in Chapter 3, Section 

3.3 of the Draft EIR. Table 6-2 in the Draft EIR compares the environmental impacts of the proposed Plan 
and each of the alternatives. 

The City certifies that it has independently reviewed and considered the information on alternatives provided in 

the Final EIR and the administrative record. Based on this review, the City finds that, while the Reduced 

Commercial Floor Area Ratio (FAR) Alternative would be similar to the proposed Plan and generally meet the 

project objectives, it would not provide as many opportunities to growth the local economy. 

A. Identification of Plan Objectives: 

The CEQA Guidelines state that the "range of potential alternatives to the proposed [plan] shall include those 

that could feasibly accomplish most of the basic purposes of the project and could avoid or substantially lessen 

one of more of the significant effects" of the Plan. CEQA Guidelines § 15126(d)(2). Thus, an evaluation of 

the Plan objectives is key to determining which alternatives should be assessed in the EIR. 

The primary purpose of the proposed Plan is to update the policy framework and land use designations that 

will guide future development in Capitola to incorporate recent planning efforts undertaken by the City and 

satisfy new State and regional regulations that have come into force since the General Plan was last updated. 

As stated in Section 3, Project Description, of the Draft EIR, the following Guiding Principles are included in 
the proposed Plan and outline the objectives of the proposed Plan: 

• 

• 

Community Identity. Preserve and enhance Capitola's intimate small-town feel and coastal village 

charm. Ensure that all areas of Capitola, not just the Village, possess a unique, memorable, and high

quality identity. Promote Capitola's reputation as a community that is sustainable, welcoming, historic, 
and family-friendly. 

Community Connections. Provide year-round opportunities for residents of all ages to meet and 
gather in public places. Enhance the ability for residents to engage in civic life. Ensure that all 

Page 16 of 19 

-39-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

neighborhoods enjoy access to high-quality community events, services, and amenities that foster 

community connections. 

• Neighborhoods and Housing. Protect and enhance the quality of life within residential 
neighborhoods. Strive for neighborhoods that are stable, inclusive, and friendly. IvIinimize impacts to 

neighborhoods-such as noise, cut-through traffic, and overflow parking-caused by new development. 

• Environmental Resources. Embrace environmental sustainability as a foundation for Capitola's way of 
life. Protect and enhance all natural resources-including the beaches, creeks, ocean, and lagoon-that 

contribute to Capitola's unique identity and scenic beauty. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and prepare 

for the effects of global climate change, including increased flooding and coastal erosion caused by sea
level rise. 

• Economy. Support a local economy that is vibrant, diverse, and dynamic. Create a brand identity for 

Capitola that is grounded in the city's unique identity. Support local businesses, "green" businesses, and 
employers that provide jobs for Capitola residents. 

• Fiscal Responsibility. Practice fiscally responsible municipal decision making to avoid shifting to day's 

costs to future generations. 

• Mobility. Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates the needs of automobiles, 
pedestrians, and bicycles. Reduce dependence on the automobile with a complete network of sidewalks, 

trails, and pathways, and support development patterns that encourage the use of public transportation. 
Promote transportation options that are safe and convenient for all residents, including youth, seniors, 

and persons with disabilities. 

• Health and Safety. Promote a safe and healthy community for people of all ages. Ensure that residents, 
businesses, and visitors are protected from natural and man-made disasters. Continue to provide 
excellent public services that support the public well-being while enhancing a sense of community. 

B. Alternatives Analyzed in the EIR 

The EIR evaluated two alternatives to the proposed Plan in detail: The No Project Alternative and the 

Reduced Commercial FAR Alternative. 

1. No Project Alternative 

Under this alternative, discussed on pages 6-2 through 6-9 of the Draft EIR, the Capitola General Plan would 

not be adopted and future development in Capitola would be subject to existing policies and land use 

designations in the existing 1989 General Plan. Under this scenario, because allowable residential densities 

would be the same as under the proposed Plan, residential growth would be the same as under the proposed 

Plan. As such, the No Project Alternative could result in up to 5,614 housing units in Capitola by 2035. The 

maximum allowable commercial FAR would not increase in the 41st Avenue Corridor and Capitola Village. In 

the 41st Avenue Corridor, the FAR would remain at 0.5 and in Capitola Village the allowable building density 

and intensity would continue to be set forth in the Central Village Design Guidelines. Therefore, non
residential buildout would be lower under the No Project Alternative than under the proposed Plan, with a 

non-residential square footage of 1,901,748 and up to 6,580 jobs by 2035. In comparison to the proposed Plan, 
this alternative would result in an equal number of housing units, and 226,777 less non-residential square 

footage, resulting in 790 fewer jobs. When compared to the proposed Plan, this alternative would result in the 

same amount of population growth with a projected increase of 280 residents by 2035. 

The No Project Alternative would result in similar biological resource, cultural resources, hydrology, population 

and housing, parks and recreation, and transportation and traffic impacts as the proposed Plan. The No Project 

Alternative would represent a deterioration compared to the proposed Plan in terms of aesthetics, air quality, 

Page 17 of19 

-40-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

land use, public service, utilities, and GHG emissions impacts. The No Project Alternative would represent an 
improvement in terms of geology, hazards, and noise impacts. The No Project Alternative would not satisfy all 

of the Plan Objectives to the same extent as the proposed Plan. Specifically, the No Project Alternative would 

not increase the allowable commercial FAR in the 41st Avenue Corridor and Capitola Village and would 
therefore not support the local economy to the same extent as the proposed Plan. Because this alternative 

would not meet the Plan objectives and not avoid the impacts of the proposed Plan, and in some instances 

would represent an environmental deterioration in comparison to the proposed Plan, this alternative was found 

to be infeasible and was rejected. 

2. Reduced Commercial FAR Alternative 

Under the Reduced Commercial FAR Alternative, the maximum allowable commercial FAR would increase in 

the 41st Avenue Corridor and Capitola Village to 1.0 to allow more commercial development than what is 

permitted under the 1989 General Plan and Central Village Design Guidelines. As under the proposed Plan, the 

Regional Commercial and Community Commercial-land use designations would apply in the 41st Avenue 
Corridor and the Village "NIi.xed Use designation would apply in Capitola Village. Under this Alternative the 

non-residential square footage would be 2,002,176, which is 126,349 square feet less than the proposed Plan, 

and result in 6,930 jobs, totaling 440 fewer jobs than that of the proposed Plan. Additionally, there would be a 

total of 5,614 housing units at buildout, which would similar to the proposed Plan. The consolidation of land 

use designations proposed in the Plan, including residential land use categories, would also apply under this 
alternative and the goals, policies, and actions contained in proposed Plan would also be adopted under this 

alternative. 

The Reduced Commercial FAR Alternative would result in similar impacts as the proposed Plan for all 

environmental topics, with the exception of GHG emissions, for which this alternative would represent an 

insubstantial improvement in comparison to the proposed Plan. This alternative would not satisfy all of the 
Plan objectives to the same extent as the proposed Plan. Specifically, the Reduced Commercial FAR 
Alternative would permit less commercial development in the 41 st Avenue Corridor and Capitola Village and 

would therefore not support the local economy to the same extent as the proposed Plan. Therefore, this 

alternative was found to be infeasible and was rejected. 

IX. STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, this City adopts and 
makes the following Statement of Overriding Considerations regarding the remaining significant and 

unavoidable impacts of the Plan, as discussed above, and the anticipated economic, social, and other benefits of 

the Plan. 

A. Findings and Statement 

The City finds and determines that the majority of the significant impacts of the Plan will be reduced to less

than-significant levels by the mitigation measures recommended in these Findings. However, as set forth 

above, the City's approval of the Plan as proposed will result in certain significant adverse environmental 

effects that cannot be avoided, even with the incorporation of all feasible mitigation measures into the Plan. 
Further, as set forth above, and there are no feasible Plan alternatives which would mitigate or avoid those 

significant environmental effects. 

In light of the environmental, social, economic, and other considerations set forth below, the City chooses to 
approve the Plan because, in its view, the economic, social, technological, and other benefits resulting from the 

Plan will render the significant effects acceptable. 

Page 18 of19 

-41-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 
CEQA FINDINGS 

MARCH 2014 

The following statement identifies the reasons why, in the City's judgment, the benefits of the Plan outweigh 

the significant and unavoidable effects. The substantial evidence supporting the enumerated benefits of the 

Plan can be found in the preceding findings, which are herein incorporated by reference, in the Plan itself, and 
in the record of proceedings as defined in Section lI(B). Each of the overriding considerations set forth below 

constitutes a separate and independent ground for findings that the benefits of the Plan outweigh its significant 
adverse environmental effects and is an overriding consideration warranting approval. 

The City finds that the Plan, as approved, would have the following economic and social benefits: 

1. The Plan will provide for the long-term social and economic vitality of Capitola by fostering the 

development of up to 5,614 housing units in Capitola. 

2. The Plan will provide for economic growth in Capitola, both through short-term jobs related to 

construction of individual projects under the Plan and through jobs added with the expansion of 

employment activities in the city through 2035. 

3. Future growth under the proposed Plan would primarily occur through infill development and 

redevelopment of currendy developed sites, as Capitola is primarily developed and urbanized. The Plan 

will guide redevelopment and conservation in Capitola in line with basic community values, ideals, and 

aspirations through 2035. 

4. The Plan will support and enhance Capitola's small-town feel and village charm. 

5. The Plan promotes environmental sustainability and the reduction of GHG emissions. 

6. The Plan will support the local economy, including "green jobs." 

Page 19 of 19 

-42-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



EXHIBIT B: MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

This document is a Nlitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the 

proposed City of Capitola General Plan Update (proposed Plan). The purpose of 

the MMRP is to ensure the implementation of mitigation measures identified as 
part of the environmental review for the project. The Draft MMRP includes the 

following information: 

• A list of mitigation measures. 

• The party responsible for implementing the mitigation measures. 

• The timing and procedure for implementation of the mitigation measure. 

• The agency responsible for monitoring the implementation. 

The City of Capitola must adopt this MMRP, or an equally effective program, if it 

approves the proposed Plan with the mitigation measures included in the EIR. 

Public Resources Code sec. 21081.6(a) requires an agency to adopt a program for 

reporting or monitoring mitigation measures that were adopted or made Condi

tions of Project Approval. 

-43-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
No. 

AIR-la 
Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing for Monitoring Action Frequency Implementation 
Prior to issuance of any Grading Permit, d,e 
Community Development Director and the Build
ing Official shall confttm d,at llie Grading Plan, 
Building Plans, and specifications stipulate d,at, in 
compliance widl MBUAPCD CEQA Air Quality 
Guidelines, the City shalllinllt areas of active 
disturbance to no more than 2.2 acres per day for 
initial site preparation activities d,at involve exten
sive earth moving activities (grubbing, excavation, 
rough grading), or 8.1 acres per day for activities 
that involve minimal earth moving (e.g., finish 
grading) during all phases of construction activi
ties. If future development projects wiiliin llie 
proposed Plan require that grading and excavation 
exceed those acreages, the City shall inlplement 
d,e following fugitive dust control measures per 
MBUAPCD CEQA Air Quality Guidelines: 
• Water all active construction areas at least 

twice daily; 
• Cover all trucks hauling soil, sand, and other 

loose materials or require all trucks to main
tain at least 2 feet of freeboard; 

• Pave, apply water three times daily, or apply 
(non-toxic) soil stabilizers on all unpaved ac
cess roads, parking areas and staging areas at 
construction sites; 

• Sweep daily (with water sweepers) all paved 
access roads, parking areas and staging areas 
at construction sites; 

• Sweep ·streets daily (willi water sweepers) if 
visible soil material is carried onto adjacent 
public streets; 

• Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabi
lizers to inactive construction areas (previ
ously graded areas inactive for ten days or 
more); 

• Enclose, cover, water twice daily or apply 

City of Capitola Prior to issuance of 
grading permit 

2 

City of Capitola 
Community 

Development and 
Building Departments 

Plan review / 
Site inspection 

Review Initials: _____ _ 
grading and Date: _____ _ 

building plans 
once; 

Conduct site 
inspections 

during 
regularly 

scheduled site 
inspections 

-44-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 

No. 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
Mitigatio!l_ Measures______ _ _____ I!!lpll!llll!!lta!i(j!l __ 1'rigger/,Iillli!lg for Monitoring Action Frequency Implementation 

(non-toxic) soil binders to exposed stockpiles 
(dirt, sand, etc.); 

+ Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 
mph; 

+ Install appropriate best management practic
es or other erosion control measures to pre
vent silt runoff to public roadways; 

+ Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as 
quicldy as possible; 

+ Install wheel washers or track-out devices for 
all exiting trucks and equipment leaving the 
site; 

+ Limit the area subject to excavation, grading 
and other construction activity at anyone 
time; 

+ Post a publicly visible sign which specifies 
the telephone number and person to contact 
regarding dust complaints (the person shall 
respond to complaints and take corrective 
action within 48 hours); 

+ Ensure that the phone number of 
MBUAPCD is visible to the public for com
pliance with Rule 402 (Nuisance); and 

+ Comply with MBUAPCD Rule 403 (particu
late Matter) regarding concentration, process 
weight and individual particles requirements. 
Discharge from any source of particulate 
matter shall not exceed of 0.15 grain per 
standard dry cubic foot of exhaust gas. Dis
charge in anyone hour from any source of 
particulate matter shall not exceed the 
amount shown in Rule 403 - Particulate Mat
ter Table 1. Additionally, emissions from any 
heat transfer, incinerator, or metal salvage 
operation of particles in sufficient number to 
cause damage to property, which particles are 

3 

-45-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
No. 

AIR-lb 

Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing for MoIlit()riJJg Action Frequency Implementation 
of sufficient size and nature to be visible in
dividually as particles on property other than 
that under the control of the person respon
sible for the emission, shall not be permitted. 

Prior to issuance of any Gmding Permit, the Di
rector of Public Works and dIe Building Official 
shall confirm that the Gmding Plan, Building 
Plans, and specifications stipulate that all off-road 
construction vehicles/equipment shall comply 
with the California Air Resources Board's In-Use 
Offroad Diesel Vehicle Regulation. Alternatively, 
the project shall implement a combination of dIe 
following emission reduction measures on some 
or all of dIe above described vehicles and equip
ment 
+ Use alternative fuels (such as biodiesel 

blends); 
+ Require diesel particulate matter filters on 

equipment; 
+ Require diesel oxidation catalyst on equip

ment; 
+ Require General and Industry-Specific Visi

ble Emission limitations for abrasive blasting, 
drinking water systems, gas turbines, pile 
drivers and federally regulated industries for 
compliance with Rule 400 (Visible Emis
sions); 

+ Install temporary electrical service whenever 
possible to avoid the need for independendy 
powered equipment (e.g., compressors); 

+ Enforce state required idle restrictions (e.g., 
post signs). Diesel equipment standing idle 
for more than five minutes shall be turned 
off. This would include trucks waiting to de
liver or receive soil, aggregate or other bulk 
materials. Rotating drunl concrete trucks may 

City of Capitola Prior to issuance of 
grading permit 

4 

City of Capitola 
Public Works and 
Building Depart-

ments 

Plan Review As deter- Initials: ____ _ 
mined by City Date: ____ _ 
based on the 

scope and 
type of pro
j ect applica-

tions 

-46-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
No. 

CULT-2 

CULT-3 

Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing for Monitoring Action Frequency Implementation 
keep their engines running continuously as 
long as they were onsite and staged away 
from residential areas; 

+ Properly tune and maintain equipment; and 
+ Stage large diesel-powered equipment at least 

100 feet from any active land uses (e.g., resi
dences). 

+ Equipment greater than 100 horsepower that 
will be used on site for more than one week 
shall meet the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA)-Certified Tier 3 or 
newer emissions standards (model year 2006 
or newer) model year 2006 or newer). 

If cultural resources or human remains are acci
dentally discovered during construction, work 
shall be halted witIlin 50 meters (150 feet) of the 
fmd until it can be evaluated by a qualified profes
sional archaeologist and/ or paleontologist. If the 
fmd is determined to be significant, appropriate 
mitigation measures shall be formulated and im
plemented. Disturbance shall not resume until ti,e 
significance of ti,e cultural resource is determined 
and appropriate mitigations to preserve ti,e re
source on the site are established. If human re
mains are encountered during construction or any 
od,er phase of development, work in ti,e area of 
discovery must be halted, the Santa Cruz County 
coroner notified, and the provisions of Public 
Resources Code 5097.98-99, Health and Safety 
Code 7050.5, carried out. If ti,e remains are de
termined to be Native American, the Native 
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be 
notified wid,in 24 hours as required by Public 
Resources Code 5097. 
Refer to Mitigation Measure CULT-2. 

City of Capitola; 
Project Applicant; 

Construction 
Manager 

During construction 

5 

City of Capitola 
Building Department 

Consult with a 
qualified 

professional 
archaeologist 

and/or 
paleontologist if 
cultural resources 
or human remains 

are accidently 
discovered 

As lnitials: ____ _ 
determined Date: _____ _ 

by qualified 
archaeologist 
/ paleontologi 

st 

Initials: ____ _ 

Date: 

-47-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 

No. 
CULT-4 

NOISE-2a 

NOISE-2b 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing forl':'l()llit()ring Action Frequency Implementation 
Refer to Mitigation Measure CULT -2. lnitials:. ____ _ 

Date: 

Project applicants shall ensure by contract specifi
cations that construction staging areas along with 
the operation of eardlmoving equipment with1n 
the City would be located as far away from vibra
tion and noise sensitive sites as possible. For pro
jects that involve the displacement of more than 
100 cubic yards of soil and is located \vitinn 25 
feet of an occupied structure, the Community 
Development Director or the Public Works Di
rector may require at tileir discretion that a project 
specific vibration impact analysis be conducted to 
determine the specific vibration control mecha
nisms that would be incorporated into tile pro
ject's construction bid documents, if necessary. 
Contract specifications shall be included in con
struction documents, winch shall be reviewed by 
the City prior to issuance of a grading permit. 

The City shall require future developments to 
implement tile following measures to reduce the 
potential for human annoyance and arclntectur
all structural damage resulting from elevated 
groundborne noise and vibration levels. 
• Pile driving within a SO-footradius of histor

ic structures (as determined by the City) shall 
utilize alternative installation methods where 
possible (e.g., pile cushioning, jetting, 
predrilling, cast-in-place systems, resonance
free vibratory pile drivers) . 

• The pre-existing condition of all designated 
historic buildings (as determined by the City) 
within a 50-foot radius of proposed con
struction activities shall be evaluated during a 
preconstruction survey, if deemed necessary 
at the discretion of the Community Devel
opment Director or the Public Works Direc-

City of Capitola; 
Project Applicant 

City of Capitola 

Prior to issuance of 
grading permit 

Project review, prior 
to approval 

6 

City of Capitola 
Community 

Development and 
Public Works 
Departments 

City of Capitola 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Review 
construction 

documents and 
specifications / As 
determined by tile 

Community 
Development 

Director or the 
Public Works 

Director, require 
and review 

vibration impact 
analysis 

Review 
preconstruction 

surveys! Conduct 
site inspections 

during construction 
activities 

Once 

During 
regularly 

scheduled site 
inspections 

lnitials: ____ _ 
Date: _____ _ 

lnitials: ____ _ 
Date: _____ _ 

-48-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
No. Mitigation Measures IIllplC!IllC!lltati()1l ':I'rigger/':I'iIlling for Monitoring Action Frequency Implementation 

tor. The preconstruction survey shall docu
ment conditions (photographically and in 
writing) that exist before construction begins 
for use in evaluating damage caused by con
struction activities. All damage shall be re
paired back to its preexisting condition . 

• Vibration monitoring shall be conducted 
prior to and during pile driving operations 
occurring within 100 feet of historic struc
tures (as determined by the City). Every at
tempt shall be made to limit construction
generated vibration levels during pile driving 
and impact activities in the vicinity of the his
toric structures. 

TRANS-l The improvements necessary to mitigate this 
impact to a less than significant level would re
quire the approval of Caltrans, and implementa
tion of the improvement may not be feasible. 

TRANS-6 Implement Mitigation Measure TRANS-1. 

GI-IG-l The City of Capitola shall prepare a Climate Ac
tion Plan within 18 months of adopting d,e pro
posed Capitola General Plan update. The Climate 
Action Plan shall include a community inventory 
of GI-IG emission sources, and a quantifiable 
GI-IG emissions reduction target for 2020 iliat is 
consistent with the statewide GI-IG reduction 
target under Assembly Bill 32 (2006) and an inter
im target for d,e General Plan horizon year 2035 
that is consistent widl d,e statewide G I-I G reduc
tion goal under Executive Order S-03-05, as out
lined in CARB's 2013 Scoping Plan Update. The 
City shall monitor progress toward ilie GI-IG 
emissions reduction goal and prepare reports 
every 5 years detailing iliat progress. Measures 
listed below shall be considered for all new devel
opment betweenthetillle()fadoption of d,e 

City of Capitola Within 18 monilis of 
adopting the General 

Plan Update 

7 

City of Capitola 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Prepare a Climate 
Action 

Once lnitials:, ____ _ 
Date: _____ _ 

-49-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 

No. 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigg~j]:'imi!lg __ forl\1:()llit()rillg Action Frequency Implementation 
proposed Capitola General Plan update and adop
tion of the Climate Action Plan. Local measures 
considered in the Climate Action Plan may in
clude: 
+ Require all municipal fleet purchases to be 

fuel-efficient vehicles for their intended use 
based on the fuel type, design, size, and cost 
efficiency. 

+ Work with AMBAG to create a Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community 
Strategy (l'vfTP /SCS) that will reduce GI-IG 
emissions generated from transportation in 
the region. 

+ Revise the Recycling Ordinance to require at 
least 50 percent diversion of non-hazardous 
construction waste from disposa~ as required 
by the California Green Building Code. 

+ Amend the Green Building Ordinance to 
encourage building designs that minimize 
waste and consumption in construction pro
jects. 

+ Require new development and major renova
tions to use energy-efficient appliances that 
meet ENERGY STAR standards and energy
efficient lighting technologies that exceed Ti
tle 24 standards by 30 percent. 

+ Amend the Zoning Code to require new 
development and major renovations to in
corporate measures that reduce energy use 
through solar orientation by taking advantage 
of shade, prevailing winds, landscaping, and 
sunscreens. 

+ Implement incentives for the use of drought
tolerant landscaping and recycled water for 
landscape irrigation. 

+ Require all new landscaping irrigation sys-

8 

-50-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 

No. 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing for Monitorillg Action Frequency Implementation 

tems installed in the city to be automated, 
high-efficient irrigation systems to reduce 
water use and require use of bubbler irriga
tion; low-angle, low-flow spray heads; or 
moisture sensors. 

+ Conduct periodic energy efficiency audits of 
existing municipal buildings by checking, re
pairing, and readjusting heating, ventilation, 
and air conditioning systems; lighting; water 
heating equipment; insulation; and weatheri
zation. 

+ Continue to implement intelligent transporta
tion systems, roundabouts, signal timing and 
synchronization, and other efficiency meth
ods that decrease idling time and congestion. 

+ Investigate partnership with programs such 
as Zipcar to support use of energy efficient 
or electric vehicles for city residents. 

+ Continue to work with county and regional 
transportation leaders to explore options for 
additional funding sources on the regional 
level to support multi-modal transportation 
infrastructure. 

+ Develop a Transportation Demand Man
agement Plan crDM) for City and local em
ployees. A TDM Program would offer incen
tives to encourage the use of alternative 
modes of transportation by City and local 
employees (e.g., in the Village, Bay Avenue, 
and 41 st Avenue areas). Free bus passes, re
imbursement for not using a parking space, 
emergency cab services, etc. will help reduce 
parking demand and reduce GI-IG emissions 
through reduced commuter traffic. 

+ Continue to work with school districts and 
solicit input from elementary, middle, and 

9 

-51-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 

No. 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing for Monitoring Action Frequency Implementation 

high school parents to identify opportunities 
to decrease emissions from school com
mutes. 

• Require bicycle parking facilities and on-site 
showers in major non-residential develop
ment and redevelopment projects. Major de
velopment projects include buildings that 
would accommodate more than 50 employ
ees, whether in a single business or multiple 
tenants; major redevelopment projects in
clude projects that change 50 percent or 
more of the square footage or wall space. 

• Provide incentives, such as giving priority in 
plan review, processing, and field inspection 
services, for new and existing commercial 
and residential projects that provide parking 
spaces reserved for electric vehicles and have 
a charging connection. 

• Encourage grey water use and rainwater' 
catchment systems where their use could ac
complish water conservation objectives 
through the following measures: 

• Integrate new California grey water build
ing/plumbing codes into the Green Building 
Ordinance. 

• Adopt a residential rainwater collection poli
cy and update the Zoning Code as needed to 
support permitting and regulation of residen
tial rainwater systems. 

• Investigate emerging technologies that reuse 
water within residential and commercial 
buildings and make that information availa
ble to the public via the City's website 
and/ or brochures. 

• Pursue funding sources to provide rebates 
and reduce permit fees for cisterns. 

10 

-52-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



CITY OF CAPITOLA 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR 

DRAFT MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

TABLE 1 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Party 
Responsible Agency 

for Implementation Responsible Monitoring Monitoring Verified 
No. 

GHG-3 

Mitigation Measures Implementation Trigger/Timing for Monitoring__ Action Frequency Implementation 
• Provide outreach support for water-efficient 

landscaping programs, classes, and business
es. 

• In partnership with PG&E and local alterna
tive energy companies, develop an Alterna
tive Energy Development Plan that includes 
citywide measurable goals and identifies the 
allowable and appropriate alternative energy 
facility types within the city, such as solar 
photovoltaics (PV) on urban residential and 
commercial roofs and wind power facilities. 
As part of this plan: 

• Propose phasing and timing of alternative 
energy facility and infrastructure develop
ment. 

• Conduct a review of City policies and ordi
nances and establish.a development review 
process for new alternative energy projects 
that ensures noise, aesthetic, and other po
tentialland use compatibility conflicts are 
avoided (e.g., installing tracking solar PV or 
angling fixed solar PV in a manner that re
duces glare to surrounding land uses). 

• Develop a renewable energy expansion plan 
for the City. 

• Consider reducing permitting fees or other 
incentives for alternative energy develop
ment. 

• Participate in regional efforts to implement 
Community Choice Aggregation (CCA). 

Implement Mitigation Measure GHG-1. Initials: ____ _ 

Date: 

11 

-53-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-54-



RESOLUTION NO. 

RES.OLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADOPTING THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

WHEREAS, The City of Capitola recognizes the need for a General Plan to guide 
future growth and development within the City; and 

WHEREAS, Section 65300 et. Seq. of the Government Code of the State of 
California requires a comprehensive General Plan for the physical developmel!t of the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has provided direction for uR~~lm~the General Plan 
for the City of Capitola and assigned City staff and a Generala,~'an Ad~isory Committee 
(GPAC) with the task of coordinating the planning proc""'$"; 'and integrating various 
comments from stakeholder and interested members of th blic;.~tld 

WHEREAS, the process to update the City's Gen ;;al Plan'd ~/d!1itiated in 2010, 
and involved extensive community involvement; and 'Z,+ "'/$ 

" <-"_,>;)-Oi:: 
WHEREAS, the GPAC endorsed the Gen¢ral Plan Update on Nove .. '''e 12,2013; 

and . 'it .. J}> 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended~,~doption of t~e'>General 
Plan Update on April 3, 2014; and <§f': . 

WHEREAS, the City Council. rovided the requif~dqotification and conducted a 
public hearing on May 8, 2014, cd d all testimon'Y'~hd proposed modifications 
received in the process, and made n, r:~visions to th~i!Final Draft General Plan 
Update; and (~\\ 

'141" 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds~~~.,(';'~ff"ic 
1. The City Council reviewed~na conside~ed the information in the Final 

Environmental Impact Report:prior to acting on the General Plan Update, 
qDdt)as certified the Final Envir~!1mentallmpact Report. 
f' .' .~. y\.vv 

2. The General f?lpn. Update h~~7' been prepared consistent with the 
requirements of State law: '. ...,i:/ 

• Th~, Gener:~Lflan updatg is a comprehensive long-term plan for the 
'physical de\ielopme~t of the City, containing the mandatory elements of 
land use, circul,atioff (mobility), conservation, open space, nOise, and 
safetycil~ they/are contained in the chapters of the General Plan 
Update,.trhe CIty's Housing Element is prepared as a separate volume 
to the :,'General Plan as it requires updates every eight years in 
accord~rice with State law. The City's current Housing Element was 
lJPd9t~tI and adopted on February 11, 2010, (and adopted by Housing 
.andCommunity Development on April 6, 2010) and covers the years 
2007 to 2014. 

/§,-

• The General Plan Update also includes an optional Economic 
Development Element as allowed by State law. 

• The General Plan Update is internally consistent in that all elements 
have been concurrently updated. 

• The General Plan balances various interests in arriving at its particular 
content and form. 

• The public hearing process has been conducted as required by State 
law. 

-55-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 2.pdf



RESOLUTION NO. __ 

• Proposed studies and actions recommended within the General Plan 
Update are desirable and will be pursued in accordance with priorities 
established by the City Council during its annual budgetary process. 
However, budget limitations may limit the City's ability to fulfill all of the 
proposed actions and studies included in the General Plan Update. 
Failure to carry out any specific study or action as suggested will not 
invalidate the General Plan Update as its adequacy is achieved through 
policies and land use designations which are not dependent on future 
studies or actions. 

• The annual review of the General Plan as requirechpy Section 65400(b) 
of the Government Code will serve as the.prlnCipal mechanism to 
monitor mitigation effects of General Plan policr~s and actions. 

- .. "':'~ 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of ~,he City of Capitola 
that the General Plan Update is hereby adopted. . .\. 

/ /,;iy(!:" 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLV~ri that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola hereby rescinds the superseded Ge'l~h:lLPlan, adqpted by Resolution NOfr3087. 
The 2007-2014 Housing Element of the GeheralHI9n is rl:pt,[escinded and remains in 
effect as part of the General Plan Update.'~/1t .' /Y %-"" 

-,:;/ 

-«"f:~%~i>~ 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that th~above and foregOi(fQ'cResolution was passed and 

adopted by the City Council of the Clt~.2t,Gapitola at its reg~!~.( me",eting held on the 8th 
day of May, 2014, by the following vote:·. "";;:jWl~J;\7 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT/ABSTAIN: 

Sam Storey, Mayor 

-56-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 2.pdf



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

2. 

4. 

Elisabeth Russell 

Barbara and Jim 

Redding 

Background 

Information on 

General 

Figure LU-4: Land 

Use Map 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

Include information regarding the City's Tree 

Ordinance 

Change land use designation of 412-414 and 

504 Bay Avenue to "Community Mixed Use" 

PAGE 1 OF 15 

. - :. . . .~ , 

on acJJacE!titproperti~s.)! 
Staff will add this information. 

The referenced property is proposed to be 

designated as Multi-Family Residential (R-MF), 

which is consistent with the present land use 

designation and existing multi-family use on the 

property. A change to a Neighborhood Mixed

Use designation, which is proposed for the 

adjacent property (Gayle's), would allow a 

broad range of commercial uses (including 

restaurants, bars, recycling collection facilities, 

grocery stores, etc.) which if developed could 

create compatibility issues with residential uses 

to the north and east. Limited commercial uses, 

such as bed and breakfasts and lodging 

facilities, would continue to be conditionally 

-57-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 2 OF 15 

Comment # Commenter Page, policy, Figure Comment Staff Response ' 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

~~YI~;()rtiz, ti,nda 
Smith; Kathryn • 

permitted uses on the property. Staff 

recommends retaining the R-MF designation; 

however, this request will be presented to the 

Planning Commission and City Council during 

adoption hearings. In addition, staff will add a 

sentence to the description of each residential 

designation, including the R-MF designation, 

that limited commercial uses may be 

conditionally permitted as allowed in the Zoning 

Ordinance. Finally, small office uses may be 

considered as an additional conditional use 

during the Zoning Ordinance Update process. 

Figur~LUA; land ........ , Insupportof changingthelandusedesignation Please seetespclnse#4:above, 
....... , .. ,. . .of 412~4i4~DcrS04!3aYAvenlle'fo'I'Com mll n ity 

.PageW~10 

Mixed O~'e;i' 

Put "historic" before "welcoming." Staff will add this language. 

Changethe'orderpfthe, first two " Staffwillmake these changes. '. 

paragraphs to pufh'l6r~en1phasisonthe, 
<' - ' .... ':;,.,:; '>",', 

historic resources (the fjrst paragraph> 

should start with "Hisf6ricand 

'ipotentially ... ") 

.<'NN~·~'$)};ai the,endwhen referencing 

"St9Ckl:orl Bridgei
'" 

•• Add"HistoricCapitolaWhi3rf" after 

-58-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 3 OF 15 

Gomment ## Commenter Bage, policy, fiigure Comment Stafll ResRonse 

8. 

10. 

12. 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

Gayle Ortiz; Lin'd~: . Page LU48! 

'Smitpi'Kathryn PoliCy UJ-L1 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

G~yieOrtiz, Linda' 

Smith; KathrY/1 . 

Gualtieri,and; ,'. 

"'CaroIVriS~ift' . 
Gayle Ortiz, Linda 

Policy LU-2.1 

Page LU-20j 

"StocktonBriage" in thesC\meparagraph 

.. In the paragraph referrjngto ~~Old .. , .. 

}t:r~~~~1J~~tHi~f~w~~:l1~sj~i~i~~~j1:~f:i .' 
"'RiV~~i~'AI Av~nue from St~tkton Avenu~to" 

Bluegum Avenue. 

p~otographshould say "circa 1931" 

• Add the Hihn Superintendent's Building on Staff will make these changes. 

the corner of Monterey Avenue and 

Capitola Avenue 

• Photo of Rispin Mansion - circa 1936 

• Photo of Capitola Hotel and Six Sisters -

circa 1904 

Thel.anguagesh?uldc;h;,mgetqUEnsurethat staff will add this language . 

. hist6ri~'and6GIt:\:iral'resourc~saremaIntained 
and that all new development enhances 

Capitola'sneighbbrlyfeel, coastal village charm 

and welcomingcharacter." 

The language should read If Encourage the 

preservation, restoration, rehabilitation, 

maintenance, and adaptive reuse ... " to make 

historic preservation more meaningful. 

"'ApbtentiC\1 preservation incentive is the 

. federal/St~teCertjfi~d [()¢atGbye'f~mel1t 

Consider change the language to indicate 

Staff will add this language. 

Staff will add this language. 

Staff will make this change. 

-59-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 4 OF 15 

comment 1# Commenter Rage, Policy, Figure Comment Staff ResBonse 

14. 

18. 

Smith; Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

Gayl~Ort:iz, Lincla 

Smith, k~th,fyli' 
G9altieri, ahd 
Caiolyi1$wift 

Gayle Ortiz, Linda 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

, Gayle'Or;tii, Linda 

.~S.l1li~Iy.Ka!bHr{; 
Gualtieri,and 

CarolVA S"Yift 

Gayle Ortiz, Linda 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

Gayle Ortizi Linda 

Smith, Katht9ri' 

"C3a~ltieri, and 

ca(ol~ri(SWift 
Gayle Ortiz, Linda 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

LU-2.1 

Page kU.20/ 

tu-2.2 

Page LU-20/ 

Action LU-2.3 

Page LU~20' 

Page LU-21/ 

Action LU-2.4 

Page LU-22 

Page LU-25/ 

Policy LU-6.7 

regular updates to the Historic Structures List. 

Rewo(d to "Continue to workwithschoQls, 

public agencies, and cOn'ltmfnity()rganizations 

through·cor)t~ct?.withthe·Capitola Hi?torica! 

Museum Cur~t~randthernuseum's archives." 

Remove one bullet point (a duplicative item) 

StaffWilJmake this change. 

Staff will make this change. 

l'l1e'photois ncit historic; suggest to use oneon' Staffwillreplace this Photograph. 

Cliff AVenue 

Replace the word "consider" with "an historic 

district on Depot Hill" 

". The phbtoisnolcinger historiC; suggest touse 

one of thegood historic homes on Depot Hill; . 

Add wording specific to the "Historic Begonia 

Festival," only historic festival for Capitola. 

Staff will make this change. 

Staff will make this change. 

-60-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CARITOLA GENERAL RLAN URDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

· GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 5 OF 15 

Comment # Commentet Rage, Roliey, liigure lilornment '~Staff Response. : ' 

>,:19:::,; }::i';GayleOrti~, Linda Page LU-2S/ 

"SriJith,i<6tHf\tn 
GG~ItI~ri, a~d>::'J;, 

20. 

22. 

26. 

'/v 

Carolyn Swift ,:,'Y' ' 

Gayle Ortiz, Linda 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

Page LU-44/ 

Policy LU-14.5 

Gayle Ortiz, Linda;, PageE()~8/ 
,,' Smith, Kathryn PoIiCyED-l.7 

")Gualti~ri'~l1d 
Carolyn Swift 

Gayle Ortiz, Linda 

Smith, Kathryn 

Gualtieri, and 

Carolyn Swift 

Page GL-4 

GayleOrtii; ~irida ,~age Gh-8 

iSmj~hi Kathryn 
" .",< .. ", , 

"'Gu~lberii and 

Carolyn Swift , 

Gayle Ortiz Page LU-39/ 

Add theWord "historic" when,referringto:: . 
'iitapi'tola)'Vhart'i,(GIOlJarC:K~:~~e) " ,. " 

Add the word "historic" when referring to the 

"Begonia Festival" 

Include the Capitola Register of Historic 

Features (mentioned on LU-ll) 

Idclqdethe National Register'ofHistoric Places 

(mentioned on LU-l0) 

Change "Capitola Road" to "Capitola Avenue" 

Still notcbrhfortable with the designation of 

"day-to-dayheeds of Capitola residents and 

·yifitors:~J.The.h!,!?c\i ng~holl!d refl~ct~the' 
'regidnal wording in ariother area: ' ' 

Do more to recognize Capitola Beach, possibly 

Staff will make this change. 

StaffwilLmake this change. 

Staff will make this change. 

Staff will make this change. ' 

Staff will make this change. 

Amend GoallUclOas follows: 

"Maintain andenhancethe Bay AVenue 

, ,'C:Qnfrri~rti~r district;as iltl)riVirig dest]n~tion 
with business~~that n1e'6tlhedaV today needs 

efseNe cap itol1lresidentsand Visitors:" 

Add new policy LU-12.7: "Capitola Beach. 

-61-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



ATTACHMENT C - GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

PAGE 6 OF 15 

tomment # Commenter pagel policy, Figure "Comment ~taff Response" A' 

Mick Routh Goal LU-12 

28. Susan Westman Page SN-5 

in this Goal. Maintain and enhance Capitola Beach as a safe 

and enjoyable destination for Capitola residents 

and visitors. Protect recreational activities on 

the beach such as volleyball, surfing, and junior 

guard activities." 

Do mo(etoemphasizethe benefitpftre~s;3nd Add a new Policy OSC~6.9:IIUrban For~st. 
'. our Commitm~nt1:opie~eQlingthem; , , C~ntinue~~6enf()rc;etheCity! sc;oml11unity-rree" 

", ',. ,,;/' " "':\/and 'Fo~est M~d~g~'l1leh1:bfdfiiahce to protect 
".:.!<~. ' '. "'<tr~es on privateimd public p~operty as 

• Remove "Capitola Avenue" in the lagoon. Staff will make these changes. 

• Change the blue on the map to lighter color 

to make the writing legible. 

Review the stat~s'6fthe NatiOilal Register of 

•· .• "iHistoricPlaces and/orthe California RegisfeftOf 

HistoHcPlaces fodhefollowing locations; 

• 1400 Warf Road (Capitola Wharf) 

'/ Che~ry;AvenqeRetaining;W~1I [,';C;> 
;/f[)8JlbtH11I St';!f{i:a$e . . ,5./;; .. 
iL~g()Onp0QF~2.3i: ~spl~Aad~,/";"" 

MQntereyAvenuE! Palm Tree 

'.' ,. St9cl<tpnAvenueBric,:lge, .,." 
' •• "".'" •• " ••••••• ". '. '"'" , ••• < 

507 Riverview (listed as National Register-

located within the historicRiverlliew ' 

iDr~t(icitL ' 

This comment pertains only to the Draft EIR. A 

-62-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 7 OF 15 

Gomment # Commenter Page; Policy} Figure comment Staff Response ~ 

30. 

32. 

34. 

Mick Routh 

Bill Delaney 

General Gomment 

(regarding the 

beach) 

Page 1-2 

Add a goal/policy/action to recognize the beach See response to comment 26. 

as the primary tourist draw and emphasize the 

need to maintain beach cleanliness and protect 

and encourage recreational opportunities such 

as surfing, beach volleyball, and junior guards 

need to be added. 

• Begin with the definition of General Plan 

Unfortunate "safety" is used instead of 

"Environmental Safety." 

Staff will.rnake minor revisionSto the 

/ri~tF;)clu~~iO~ sothatallideas frorifth~Glos.sary 
definitionoftlieGeneralPlanare reflected in 

the Introcluction,' Staff believes the term 

"action" is app~o~~iat~for us~inthe General 

Plan; 

"Safety Element" is a term-of-art in General 

Plans and State law. The Safety Element 

includes safety related goals, policies, and 

actions which are broader than environmental 

safety issues. ; 

Polic:iesandactio~sarenotequal: Delete Figute •... ; Thetef~r:~~ceatextand figure inditafe that 

J~:,:I" Thezfv1obilitY'~I~r11erit'isparticularh;;;:' ...•. j56lides and actions 'are tiedto·olferarching 

ffouble'Some as 53 policies and 30 actions <lr'e 

participated in the process. Provide 

minutes/summaries of all meetings. 

goals and have equal importance. It is not 

intended to mean that there are an equal 

; numbe~ofpolitjes ;;lnd action items foreach 

(;goal •.• ~ 

Staff will add a new acknowledgements section 

at beginning of document that lists GPAC 

members and other groups and individuals who 

contributed to preparation of the General Plan. 

-63-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

36. 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

Policy LU-l0.2 and 

Action LU-l0.l 

Median structures on Bay Avenue and other 

heavily used driveways (i.e. north of Hill Street) 

in Figure LU-7 are inappropriate as any would 

interfere with turns by residents. 

PAGE 8 OF 15 

ditional short paragraph ... 

ie)(plainrrigth~ EIRar)q CEQAproces!>;However, 

. the GeneraLp,lan:wHl notcontilit1detailed o[ 

technical ihf()rmatjonabout thedmpac} analysis 
... ··oftheGeneral PlancontainedCin the DraftEIR. 

TheGeif~falPlan will dirrict:teaaerst6 the Draft 

E information 

Action LU-l0.l calls for the City to explore the 

possibility of additional medians on Bay Ave. 

only where left turn movements for vehicles 

would not be restricted. The General Plan does 

not promote medians in driveways. The 

consideration of medians in appropriate 

locations along Bay Avenue was supported by 

the General Plan Advisory Committee and 

participants of public workshops. 

lJet'weE!n Oak Drive Po urages a 

.; .. '. arid;cekterSt~eetalready tree-lined 

Thiiwe~tside has'alift:[elarid for additional 

boule"ardstre~ts~~peaiiJhg Bay Ave.~o~th of 

the Capitola Produce property. Segments of 
BayAve. which arecum:!htly tree-lined would 

coh1plywitnthis pOlicy.··Wbrfelhepolicy 

. encoufagesadditionaltrees andlahdscaping 

.. aldhg13aY;Av"~:, .. itwoufanotrequire ihstallatiori· 

of trees wh'ereinfeasible. 

-64-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 9 OF 15 

Gommant # Commenter; pa a, polic'l, lti~ura eomment Staff Response ~ 

40. Bill Delaney Policy LU-12.5 

increased speeds through this intersection and 

on Bay Avenue between Capitola Avenue and 

Hill Street on access to businesses and 

residences. Safety and air quality should be 

analyzed in depth with use of models more 

detailed than presented in the DEIR. Public 

benefits should be demonstrated to exceed 

public costs." See OSC Policy 2.4. 

study shall consider impacts on traffic speeds, 

delays, and air quality." 

This seems an inappr6pria($us$O,fscarce public . Staffrecognitest~at ActionltemscontainedJn 

resources ana better left tothe private sector. the GeneralPlanwHlrequire the expenditwe of 

publicresources.\Th~Pianning 'Commission and 

Gity Gouncil will con;sid~r'~IIActionltems 
contained inthe Gener~I;Pranandfoliowing 
1Jeneral Plan adoption will establish priorities 

ic,and funding mechanisms, Staftl;lelieves 

deveiopmenf6faStreetscape M~ster Plan 

would bebestcompllited by the City because it 

•••.• would appl/t6publicrights-of-wayand 

·>'because it is unfikelythat the dozens of 

propertyowriers who snare Bay Avenue 

frontage would all<lgre~t6 finance a 

Add "Increase opportunities for residents to The parking in front of the Wharf is already 

access the wharf, especially in off-peak periods, restricted to 4-hour parking. In Gapitola Village, 

by reducing the maximum parking time at the 8 immediately adjacent to the Wharf the time 

-65-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 10 OF 15 

Comment'# Commerl'ter Ragel Roliey, Figure Comment , Staff Response 

Page MO-l 

metered spaces and prohibiting the use of 

parking passes for stays beyond that limit." 

limit is 2-hours. Staff considers the existing 

parking time limits acceptable, but will add a 

new Action 12.4: "Wharf Parking. Consider 

adjusting parking regulations in the Wharf area 

to increase opportunities for residents to access 

the wharf, particularly in off-peak periods. 

'Add"Us!,) sign age and;outreachto'promotefhe Staffwill addthelfbllowingsentencetoActioh" 

use ofthe bicycle bridge across soq~~ICre~kb~>fv16-8.3:'fEnsurethat bicyclists ccmsafelycross 

Scenic Trail visitors." 

• There is no quantification of visitor impacts 

on mobility (Seasonality, AM/PM peaks, 

School-based trips, etc.). 

• No data for bicycle/pedestrian 

characteristics and volumes 

• Expand the background discussion or add a 

third section documenting assumed future 

conditions and the build out and growth 

assumptions used by consultants for DEIR 

analyses. Clearly identify the specific LU 

action that is the basis for each assumption. 

SoqueLCr~ek when traveling through the ,". 

Village." 

See response #35. Also, visitor impacts on 

mobility are a key part of the Mobility element. 

Policies and Actions under Goal MO-6 in 

particular focus on addressing mobility issues 

caused by visitors to the Village. Policy MO-2.6 

and Action MO-2.4 address school-related 

circulation issues. There is no existing data of 

bicycle or pedestrian volumes to report. 

Growth assumptions in the DEIR are used to 

project worst case scenario environmental 

impacts which are unlikely to be realized; 

therefore, staff does not believe this 

information is appropriate in the General Plan. 

'ther-eha. daiaon bicycle and pedestrian Thistypeof data is appropri~te fo(the City's 

Bicycle MasterPlan; The City Will cod~rq~r 
• collecting this data when thel3itycle Master 

Plan is updat~d. 

-66-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

PAGE 11 OF 15 

@omment # commenter Rage, Policy, Eigure eomment Staff ResRonse 

44. Bill Delaney Page MO-1 

Page MO~l 

46. Bill Delaney Page MO-2 

Bill D~laney > .. 

48. Figure MO-2 

Bill Delaney General Comment 

Add section on assumed future conditions and See response #42. Information on General Plan 

growth assumptions 

W of term "safe" 

buildout conditions are in Section 3.4.4 of the 

Draft EIR. 

See response to comment 32. 

Delete lithe totalll and insert lIestimated". Staff will make these changes. Language 

Define ADT in the Glossary. It is a technical explaining the source of numbers will be very 

term with a complicated statistical basis. Add brief. 

language to explain the source of numbers in 

that figure as noted below. 

c:orrect the Street n.arrre typos in the insert. StaffwillmakEdhese changes. ;. 

Ambiguity on the lIexisting" year should be fixed Staff will make this change. 

by changing the figure title to IIHistoric/Recent 

Traffic Levels. 1I 

Need~oaddr~ssfl..ltureih quantitat'"e terms> See response #35. Future traffic impacts from 

>;: .':(i~ri~ral plan buildout Is addressed in the. Draft; 

EIR: 

Figure MO-2 says existing traffic counts are 

from 2011; base case analysis is not reliable 

New traffic counts were collected in 2013. Staff 

will update the text and Figure MO-2 to reflect 

this new data. See also response #35. 

S1.:BIII Delaney ". 'Gen~ral @omment .• Needa bit?liogri;1phy that includes complete 

·.·'refer~rif~s·tdarlsoun:!ematerials 
Staff will add a bibliography. 

;.::~ ••••••• ,::; •• ;::.: •• ; ••••••• ,... • ••• -.; ................. _ •• _ •••••••• _._ ••••••• __ ~ ••• ~:~:;.:::;~:_~;. __ ••• -•• :. • ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• _ ••••••• 8 ............ _ •• _. __ _ 

52. Bill Delaney Page MO-6 
................. _-_._._ .......... - ............................... __ .. _ ...................... : .................. -.... ; .. ;:. ..... ; .. ,.;:.~:-... -:.. .. :...... ........ ......................................... . ................................................................................................ _ .... _ ............................ .. 

Replace "determine" with "grossly determine" Staff will make this revision. 

or "roughly estimate" 

'Add ani~xpiat1ai:ionjaefil1itionof 
"second/vehicle"c when'doestirne coJl1t" 

begitl?ls totarsignal timeaaped to the time if a 

See response #35. 

-67-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

56. Bill Delaney 

58. 

Page MO-l0 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

th"rA,fArAnl'A on 
, ;' "-" " ' '. 

materialsJ()~1:ore~.at Kings Plaza. If 

referenceYefaIl1eiWi'eplac:e "south" wi~h 

.,,/ieasti1 al1cJ insertlinortK'; afte~lIthehu 
'~ri;;';;'~~fer~ride6NE'~slitl iff'OMe·i ~i~nd cUtof 

theYillage: Delete "East'( 

" Re,ter~2S~"'~~i.~pr~~?PS Hne~;i~i~I:~':'i;;'~::"':' 
\Jnless it'SaseasonEIi route; Add "withlight 

• Add a discussion of the RTC Coastal Trail 

(October 2013), especially on the treatment 

of a Soquel Creek Crossing. 

• Add a discussion of the proposal the City 

has prepared and its search for funding 

from RTC. 

PAGE 12 OF 15 

part of future discussions to change shuttle 

service. This level of detail is not appropriate 

for the General Plan. 

Soquel Creek crossing issue. See response to 

Comment #41. Enhanced bicycle and 

pedestrian facilities between the Pacific Cove 

parking lot and the Village are addressed under 

Goal LU-ll in the Land Use Element. City 

• Pedestrian safety and street capacity issues applications for funding should not be 

related to Coast Plan bicycle traffic should addressed in the General Plan. 

be addressed with some priority. 

• 
in the village, particularly at the Capitola- improve the pedestrian crosswalk at the 

-68-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 13 OF 15 

Comment # Commenter page, policy, Figure Comment Staff Response 

Stockton junction. 

....................................................... -................ ··· .. · .. ·········· .... ·· ...... ··· .. ··· .. ·· .... ·· .. ·· .. ·P·age .. ·iV1 .. o=i5··············· ............ - .... -Add·;;s~f~;;··to:rea·d·;;~afe .. a·nd~U's·taT~ab·i~' .... · 
Goal MO-l: , mannerll 

Delete "to infrastructurell 

62. Bill Delaney Goal MO-2 

63. Deletei!users" and insert "residents'! 

Capitola-Stockton intersection. No changes to 

the General Plan are necessary. ··· .. · .. " .. :~Sta:ff';iT[m~·k~ .. t-hi"s .. ·~h .. a~ge: .. ······· ...................................... -.. -.. 

Staff will make this change. 

This actionifem isilitended to work with 

;;:~~gional partners to adc:fr'es~ 'cross-jurisdictional 

.. transportation issues, not just those which 

affect Capitola .• 

modes of transportation. No change is 

necessary. 

Users include all persons; including residents 

Nocliangeis ri"ecessary. 

64. Bill Delaney Page MO-17 

Policy MO-2.5 

Delete "Supportll and insert "Present for public The General Plan Advisory Committee and 

"Bill Delar\~y Page MO'"ii3; 
Goal MO~3'" 

• :·~ ••••• :.:.:; •••••••••••••• ,.;.: • .;...::i .•••• :::-••. -:; .-... -...... -.. ' ......... ---.. ---..:' .. ;;;; ... ~;~..:----...... ''''_.,._ .. . 
66. Bill Delaney Page MO-20 

Action MO-4.1 

review" 

• Delete "the public" and insert "residents". 

Insert "operational and financial" before 

"feasibility". Insert "and safety" after 

"feasibility". 

participants of public workshops expressed a 

desire to support opportunities for re-purposing 

rights-of-way for improved pedestrian and 

bicycle connections. No change proposed. 

ThePublic;Works~bYrect()r is the most qualified 

and appropriateindhtidual to make this 

determinatibn .. Ndclianges are·necessary . 
. ......................................................................... - .................................................... - ..................................... j 

A feasibility study would include considerations 

of geometrics, operational efficiency, and 

economics. The word "public" includes 

residents as well as business-owners and other 

stakeholders who may not reside in Capitola. 

-69-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

PAGE 14 OF 15 

Comment # Commenter page, policy, Figure Comment Staff Response 

No changes are proposed. 
1~~----~~=7~~~----~~--~~----------~~~--~~~~--~~~~~~~~----__ ~----------'~~~~~~,~~ 

Page fllJ(j:20 .AC!dthesesentences:!,~slrrn~teiheim~~ct '. Constructionofatoundabout wouldreilull"ean 

68. 

70. 

72. 

,;}3; 

Bill Delaney 

Bill Delaney 

Alyson Tom, Santa 
Cruz Flood Control 
and Water 
Conservation 
District Zone 5 

AlysonTorn, Santa 
<Cruz Flood ContrOl 

andWafJr'i'; 

Page MO-22 
polrcy MO-6.3 
Page M()~24 ' 

. Poli¢y MO-7.6 
Page MO-25 
Policy MO-8.2 

Page SN-5 

or\tra'fftt~peeds onall,stre~tsarld.iiQrr{pa·re environmental analysis under the Califptnia 
'"withlatestdat'aftOfl1"poiiceradar EnvironmeritalQualityAct which in~turn . 

··,machines ... Est.ima~e delaysihexI$iil1g requiresi'ln~vah.lati6ri'df traffIC aria air q~ality" . 
. od~i'nesses a'nd residences on a ,rs1:reets 

, ,- - - < • ~ .-:.: ' ;... ., ' 

Including Bay'AveriUe between Oak Drive 
'and Center Street and ass6~iated impacts 

on air quality." 

A~.lnqicateainTesponse #66, operational/' 
effitiencywould also be considered in a 
feasibility study. 

Add at the end "and Coastal Trail visitors to the See response to comment #41 and #56. 
Soquel Creek pedestrian-bike bridge." 

Delete "establishment'! and insert ~/feasibiHty" ,. StCl,ffwll!revise to say" ... e)(plorethe feasibility 
of establishing; .. 

. -----_ .. _-----------_ .. - .............. _._-_. __ ._._ .. _. __ ._._ ......... _- .......................... _ ..... . 

Add at the end "and the Coastal Trail." See response to comment #41 and #56. 

Delete IiPrioritize". Insert "Among!:. InserFafter .'. The Genen:ifPlan Advisory Comrriitteeand 
(/impro~E!mentslJ<pri()ritize those;; '. members of the public expressed a strong 

Santa Cruz County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District Zone 5 provide 
maintenance and improvements for limited 
areas within the City where the Zone holds 

easement. 

design to prioritize pedestrian facilities. 
The City of Capitola respectfully disagrees. No 
changes are proposed. 

GeneralComrnents. i Reference onSt~rmwaterMahagement Plan 
(DEIR) ······'(SWMPlshmildinciude the reference to the 

Staff will make these revisions 

SWRCB Phase II Small MS4 GeneralPermit 

-70-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



ATTACHMENT C - GENERAL PLAN UPDATE RESPONSES TO COMMENTS 

CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS & RESPONSES 

74. Heather Adamson, General Comment 

Association of 

Monterey Bay Area 

Governments 

The most recent forecast data (February 2014) 

should be used in the General Plan and DEIR 

(Appendix A of the Draft 2035 Metropolitan 

Transpiration Plan (MTP)/Sustainable 

Communities Strategy (SCS)) 

PAGE 15 OF 15 

Growth projections are addressed only in the 

DEIR, not in the General Plan. The Final EIR 

responds to this comment. 

-71-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-72-



FAR INFORMATION 

Floor Area Ratio 

0.5 FAR 

1 Story § 2 Stories S§~ , 
~ ~ f 

1.0 FAR 

1 Story 2 Stories §§ ~ 
4 Stories 

~ ~ ~ 
2.0 FAR 

2 Stories 4 Stories 8 Stories 

Entire Lot Area Half Lot Area Quarter Lot Area 

-73-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



• 17.03.246 Floor Area Definition: 
"Floor area" means the entire floor area in all enclosed 
structures, without deduction for such features as 
interior walls, stairways or storage, except as permitted 
for one and one-half story single family residences 
pursuant to Section 17.15.100{B}. It also includes covered 
or uncovered upper-floor decks; and porches and 
covered exterior open space in excess of one hundred 
fifty square feet, including eaves greater than eighteen 
inches in length. For commercial uses the floor area of 
patios, courtyards and outside dining areas primarily 
utilized by a business or group of related businesses, its 
customers, or its employees, as opposed to the general 
public. "Floor area ratio" means the gross floor area of all 
of the buildings on the lot divided by the net lot area. 

-74-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



Village - Existing Floor Area Ratios (approximate) 

-75-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



North 41st Avenue - Existing Floor Area Ratios (approximate) 

-76-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



South 41st Avenue - Existing Floor Area Ratios (approximate) 

-77-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 4.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-78-



41ST AVE COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY EXHIBIT 
41st Avenue & Clares Street 

-79-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f



41st Avenue & Capitola Road 

-80-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f



41st Avenue & Jade Street 

-81-

Item
 #: 10.B

. A
ttach

 5.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-82-



CAPITOLA HISTORIC NARRATIVE - PREPARED BY CAROLYN SWIFT 
FOR THE 

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

Capitola's earliest history evolved around the wetland at the mouth of Soquel Creek. A tribal unit of 

about 200 native inhabitants, the Uypi, lived here for thousands of years. The name Soquel derives from 

these Ohlone people and identifies the range oftheir settlement along the coast, the creek, and its 

tributaries. When the Santa Cruz Mission was established in 1791, the Uypi were taken to the mission 

compound. Their culture persisted, but their traditional home sites were lost. 

The territory that defines present-day Capitola was awarded in two Mexican land grants. The 1A73 acre 

Rancho Arroyo del Rodeo took in the west side of Soquel Creek, including Forty-First Avenue, and was 

given to Francisco de Sales Rodriguez in 1834. Rancho Soquel, spreading over 1,668 acres, was received 

in 1833 by Maria Martina Castro Lodge and her husband, Michael. 

Intelligent and ambitious, Frederick Augustus Hihn (1829-1913) arrived in California from Germany as 

the Gold Rush began. Settled in Santa Cruz by 1851, he soon owned sizable portions of the Soquel and 

Arroyo del Rodeo Ranchos. Among his 1856 acquisitions was a two-mile stretch between Borregas Creek 

and Soquel Creek and another parcel nearby that was part of Rancho Arroyo del Rodeo. This land was to 

become Capitola. 

Construction of the 1857 wharf and the 1876 Santa Cruz-Watsonville Railroad was prompted by Hihn's 

investments in industry. Freighters made frequent landings at the wharf until the rail line was purchased 

and improved by Southern Pacific Railroad in 1881. Today, the wharf and trestle border and identify 

Capitola Village. 

As soon as the wagon route to Capitola was linked to a turnpike over the summit in 1858, inland valley 

residents came to the beach to escape the summer heat. Samuel Alonzo Hall, lessee of the beach flat, 

recognized an opportunity coming with passenger rail service. Lumber for the trestle was delivered in 

May 1874, and several weeks later-with Hihn's approval-Hall opened Camp Capitola. The vacation 

retreat was named for a heroine in fictional novels by author E.D.E.N. Southworth. 

As Capitola profited, Hihn took direct charge of the camp's development. Lots between Capitola and 

Cherry Avenues were subdivided in 1882. The first privately owned cottages were typically small, 

without foundations or plumbing. 

Few of these early cottages survive. City and fire officials ordered a majority of them torn down in the 

early 1960s. The Hihn Superintendent's Building at the corner of Monterey and Capitola Avenue was 

spared. Given a foundation and renovated in 1973, it is now listed on the National Register of Historic 

Places. 

Today's Depot Hill was defined in Hihn's 1884 subdivision map. German-American families associated 

with the Turn Verein, a social and athletic club, built a cluster of houses on and near Cliff Avenue. A 

-83-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 6.pdf



private family retreat known as the English Cottages was built in 1897 on the eastern end of the tract 

between Railroad and Grand Avenues. The resort was renamed EI Saito in 1911. 

During the 1880s, Hihn invested $5,000 in village improvements. Vacationers could rent lodgings or stay 

in the free campground. As Capitola expanded, the tents and older cabins were moved upstream. The 

tract gradually filled in with private homes and is now listed as the Old Riverview Historic District on the 

National Register of Historic Places. 

Above the wharf to the west, Hihn owned property halfway up the ridge, where he had located the 

railroad and trestle. Hilltop owner Dennis Feeley opened Camp Fairview in 1888. Hihn soon acquired it 

but added no amenities. The surrounding neighborhood was named the Jewel Box in the 1970s, its title 

inspired by Opal Cliffs. 

Between 1894 and 1904, the 160-room Queen Anne/Colonial Revivial-style Hotel Capitola, the Six Sisters 

duplexes, and similarly styled concessions along the ocean front were built. An electric streetcar line was 

then completed between Capitola and Santa Cruz, and a modern railroad depot was set at the top of the 

hill along Park Avenue. The resort reached a high point when Hihn promoted "Capitola by-the-Sea" as a 

setting for annual conferences. Lawn Way was his last Capitola project in 1911, and is listed in the Six 

Sisters/Lawn Way National Register Historic District. 

After Hihn's death in 1913, Capitola was left to a daughter, Katherine Cope Henderson. She sold the 

resort in 1919 to (Henry) Allen Rispin (1872-1947). Backed by the Capitola Company syndicate of 

investors, Rispin intended to profit by subdividing and marketing lots on undeveloped tracts. Inside the 

village, he tore down many older structures and offered others for sale. Hotel Capitola was sold. 

The ocean front was modernized with concrete and stucco. In 1920, the Esplanade was paved and 

curved out onto the beach. The Spanish Colonial Revival-style Venetian Court was developed in 1924 on 

the former site of a long-established fishing village at the base of the wharf. Venetian Court is now a 

National Register Historic District. 

As Capitola prospered in the mid-Twenties, land use patterns changed in the surrounding countryside. 

Upstream on the creek's west side, Rispin had anticipated that his 1921 Spanish Colonial 

Revival/Mediterranean mansion would inspire construction of similar architectural styles nearby. The 

borders of the resort bloomed instead with flowers. 

West of Capitola along Forty-First Avenue, James Brown became a worldwide producer of the tuberous 

begonia. The bulb and flower industry spread to neighboring tracts along Forty-First and between 

Capitola Road and Cia res Street. Capitola Mall and Brown Ranch Marketplace now occupy the ranch and 

farm site. 

The 250th Coast Artillery's Camp McQuaide was established in 1926-27 to the east ofthe resort and 

along Park Avenue. Adjoining it was an "airdrome" to become the Santa Cruz-Capitola Municipal Airport 

in 1934. 

-84-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 6.pdf



Overextended financially, Rispin sold the Hihn water system and began to ignore basic public services. 

The subdivisions of Riverview Terrace and Fanmar Terrace took shape in 1928. Rispin left abruptly in 

1929, and another Capitola Company investor, Robert Hays Smith, assumed ownership of his properties. 

Smith himself was bankrupt within a few years. The Rispin Mansion was sold in 1940. From 1941 to 

1959, it was a convent for the Order of Poor Clares. Purchased by the City in 1985, the mansion was 

scheduled for renovation when it burned in 2009. The building has been sealed and its exterior 

preserved. It remains listed on the National Register of Historic Places. 

Sewer and street repairs, beach and creek pollution, adequate fire and police protection were all critical 

issues during the Great Depression. Hotel Capitola burned in 1929. An entire block was destroyed 

between Stockton and San Jose Avenues in 1933. Civic leaders began to discuss the need for municipal 

services. 

After World War II, the Capitola Improvement Club was organized and campaigned for an incorporation 

election. Capitola became a city in January 1949, by a margin of 54 votes. Just completed, Highway 1 

put a physical boundary between the two traditionally close communities of Capitola and Soquel. 

Postwar growth hastened new construction. Closed in 1954, Capitola Airport property was the City's 

first annexation in 1959, preparing for the Cliffwood Heights subdivision. The 1962 opening of the 

nearby Cabrillo College campus added pressure for housing. Capitola shifted from a community of 

retirees and vacation homeowners to students and young families. 

In the early Sixties, a clover-leaf was built on Highway 1 and Forty-First Avenue, and the roadway was 

upgraded. King's Market at the corner of Capitola Road and Forty-First Avenue, built in 1963 by George 

Ow, Sr., set in motion the expansion of retail business along the improved corridor. 

Debating the future of the beach flat and adjoining bluffs, the City Council evaluated benefits of multi

story high rises. Cliff Apartments were built in 1964 on a former City-owned park site at the end of 

Grand Avenue. That year, Capitola adopted its first general plan. 

Panic set in as the City resort then faced the greatest challenge of its history. Santa Cruz Harbor 

construction created a breakwater that blocked the sand that normally drifted down the coast to 

replenish the beach. Waves undercut ocean front building foundations, the storm sewer was exposed, 

and cliff erosion accelerated. Capitola's vacation economy shrank accordingly. A rock jetty built near the 

eastern bluff finally helped restore the shoreline beach after 1969. It cost more than $1 million to get 

the beach back. 

During the crisis, Council members investigated ways to keep the tourist resort attractive. A 1965 citizen 

group submitted ideas supporting a "small, intimate family-scale style of buildings" and a "rustic and 

individual character" rather than a "slick, modernistic style." One quickly adopted suggestion was to 

rename the business flat "Capitola Village." 

-85-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 6.pdf



Before the beach returned, artisans and "long-hairs" settled into empty storefronts and opened 

businesses with counterculture charisma. By the early Seventies, the young entrepreneurs joined the 

Chamber of Commerce and took a role in planning and politics. 

Capitola's fortunes improved dramatically as the 1975 General Plan was drafted. In a controversial 

move, the city annexed 38 acres ofthe Forty-First Avenue Brown Bulb Ranch property. Sutter Hill 

Development Company then built a shopping center to be known as the Capitola Mall. Annexation was 

approved in March 1975, and the mall opened in 1977. Proposition 13 passed in 1976. Capitola 

benefited as revenue for cities shifted from property taxes to sales taxes. 

The Council was able to lower taxes, increase staff, and build a new city hall. Projects over the next 

fifteen years included a school gym, central parking lot and metering system, a park-and-ride shuttle, 

Rispin Mansion and wharf purchases, plans for a new library, construction of the Jade Street Park 

complex, and the start of creek habitat protection. 

The Capitola General Plan of 1989 followed two disasters. The 1982 flood and 1983 high tide drew 

attention to coastal hazards and planning development in the flood plain. Focus was given to historic 

preservation as builders increasingly applied to remodel or replace the Village's older structures. An 

architectural survey was completed in 1987 and three National Register Historic Districts were created. 

A $35 million mall expansion doubled the retail shopping area in 1988. Forty-First Avenue was widened 

in the shopping district to a six-lane boulevard, attracting new businesses and a number of smaller 

shopping centers. The opening of the Capitola Auto Center further increased tax revenue base, allowing 

the city to move with confidence toward the new millennium in 2001. 

Today Forty-First Avenue is the most traveled street in Santa Cruz County. 

-86-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 6.pdf



Sneddon,Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Nels, 

Grunow, Rich 
Friday, May 02,20142:30 PM 
Westman, Nels 
City Council 
RE: General Plan Comments for. Council Meeting on 5/8/14 

Thank you for your comments regarding the proposed General Plan Update. Since you'll be out of town on the 
8th, I thought I would offer a response in advance of the Council hearing. 

As it relates to single-family residential densities, state law requires General Plans to establish maximum 
allowable densities for residential neighborhoods. Single-family neighborhoods in the City currently have a R
LM (Residential Low-Medium) GP land use designation. The existing maximum allowable density in the R-LM 
land use designation is 10 dwelling units/acre. The proposed GP would retain the current maximum 10 dulac 
density. 

The 5,000 square-foot minimum lot size requirement for single-family neighborhoods is established through the 
zoning ordinance. The proposed GP would not affect ZO lot size requirements and I'm not aware of any desire 
to reduce minimum lot size requirements in the upcoming zoning ordinance update. 

Density and lot sizes both regulate development intensity; however, they are not the same standard. Lot size 
is a component of the density formula: density = number of dwelling unitslfot size (described in acres). 

It's important to note that density regulations only apply to subdivisions and multi-family projects. Density 
would have no affect on development within a recorded legal lot. 

Subdivision requests are required to comply with both GP density and ZO minimum lot size requirements. 
Although both current and proposed GPs allow a maximum of 10 dulac, an applicant would still need to comply 
with the minimum 5,000 square foot lot size requirement of the ZOo As you correctly point out, compliance with 
ZO lot size requirements effectively reduce density yield to 8.7 dulac. We added language on page LU-12 of 
the proposed GP in response to concerns about the densityllot size distinction: "Densities on individual parcels 
may be lower due to site constraints or other City regulations such as minimum lot sizes as specified by the 
zoning code". 

One of the oddities in the current GP is that it provides a density range for various residential land use 
designations. For instance, the R-LM designation has a range of 5-10 dulac. This is highly unusual for 
General Plans and I think it has caused confusion. The maximum allowable density within this range, 
however, remains 10 dulac. 

The City Council could reduce the single-family density allowance to 8.7 dulac, but I think it's highly unlikely the 
City will see any single-family subdivision applications which would be affected by a density reduction from 10 
dulac to 8.7 dulac. If you run the math, lot yields would be the same unless an applicant had a parcel larger 
than 30,000 square feet. Even then, compliance with ZO minimum lot size requirements would prevent an 
applicant from gaining an extra lot through the existing density standard. 

Max Density 
ZO Lot Size 

Parcel Size Formula GP Density Yield Yield (5,000 sq. Allowance 
ft.) 

10 dulac 10,000 sq. ft .23 acres x 10 dulac = 2.3 2 lots 2 lots 
dulac 

1 

-87-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 7.pdf



8.7 dulac 10,000 sq. ft .23 acres x 8.7 dulac = 2.0 2 lots 2 lots 
dulac 

10 dulac 20,000 sq. ft .46 acres x 10 dulac = 4.6 4 lots 4 lots 
du/ac* 

8.7 dulac 20,000 sq. ft .46 acres x 8.7 dulac = 4.0 4 lots 4 lots 
dulac 

10 dulac 30,000 sq. ft .69 acres x 10 dulac = 6.9 6 lots 6 lots 
du/ac* 

8.7 dulac 30,000 sq. ft .69 acres x 8.7 dulac = 6.0 6 lots 6 lots 
dulac 

10 dulac 31,000 sq. ft .71 acres x 10 dulac = 7.1 7 lots 6 lots 
dulac 

8.7 dulac 31,000 sq. ft .71 acres x 8.7 dulac = 6.2 6 lots 6 lots 
dulac 
.. 

*NOTE: The General Plan does not allow densItIes to be rounded-up. 

Sorry for the long-winded explanation, but it's a bit of a convoluted issue which is challenging to succinctly 
explain. 

You also noted concerns about Policy LU-3.5, which states: "Pedestrian and Bicycle Connections. Require 
new development to provide for pedestrian and bicycle connections between residential and commercial 
areas". 

The intent here is not to require single-family residential projects to provide access through their properties, but 
to make it safe and convenient for people to walk to nearby commercial uses. There were concerns raised 
during the GPAC process that pedestrians and bicyclists have to navigate through dangerous and uninviting 
parking areas to access entrances to commercial buildings. Staff would be happy to revise this language to 
more clearly communicate intent. 

Please contact me if you would like to discuss further. 

Safe and happy travels, 

Rich 

> -----Original Message-----
> From: Nels .Westman [mailto:nels@bestwestman.com] 
> Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 2:35 PM 
> To: City Council 
> Cc: Grunow, Rich 
> Subject: General Plan Comments for Council Meeting on 5/8/14 
> 
> Dear City Council, 
> 
> Susan and I will be out of the country on May 8th and will miss this 
> important meeting. Sorry. 
> 
> First, if I may, an editorial comment about the whole General Plan 
> update process. It has been mind-numbingly long, repetitive and far 
> more expensive than any small, built-out town like Capitola should 
> have to bear. And it seems that you have only accomplished a portion 

2 

-88-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 7.pdf



> of the grand task you originally envisioned three years ago. 
> Interested members of the public have sat through many) many hours of 
> meetings and have read literally reams of papers) minutes and reports 
> in the hope of being able to contribute just a few small 3-minute 
> sound bites to the discussion. All are burned out; most are disillusioned with the process. 
> There just has to be a better way to update Capitola's General Plan 
> next time around. 
> 
> In the early stages of the process) staff introduced their vision of a 
> bigger) better) higher) denser) visitor-driven Capitola as though they 
> alone knew what was best for us. During the following couple of years) 
> the GPAC and the public worked hard to reel in the staff vision and 
> produce a document that more accurately reflected what the community 
> wanted instead. In the next few years we will see which vision 
> resonates better with the voters. 
> 
> I can't even begin to wrap my mind around the EIR document. It is just 
> too much for a mere mortal to assimilate. However) I do have a couple 
> of comments about the General Plan' document that is before you. 
> 
> I have had a couple of good discussions with Rich about residential 
> densities on Page LU-14. I respect his professional interpretation of 
> the R-SF paragraph) but I remain concerned. Our current R-1 
> neighborhoods) the backbone of our community) have historically had a 
> maximum density of 8 dwelling units per acre. The proposed R-SF 
> designation which will include the current R-1 neighborhoods) clearly 
> has a maximum density of 10 units per acre. If I understand Rich 
> correctly) he feels our current zoning ordinance will protect the 
> current 8 units per acre density. I wor~y that with the G~neral Plan 
> calling for 10 units) there will be an eventual attempt to revise the 
> zoning ordinance to conform to the General Plan number resulting in a 
> 25% increase in density in what are now R-1 neighborhoods. I won't 
> spend a lot of time outlining the traffic) parking) privacy and 
> congestion implications of such an increase other than to say it isn't pretty. 
> Please protect our existing R-1 neighborhoods by either adding 
> specific language that the maximum R-1 density shall be 8 units per 
> acre or give a density range for R-SF of 8 to 10 units per acre. 
> 
> My other area of concern is the potential negative impact of 
> commercial development on adjacent residential neighborhoods resulting 
> from the increase in development density coupled with reduction of 
> required parking. Additional language has been added to the General 
> Plan that emphasizes taking great care insuring new development and 
> reduced parking do not hurt nearby residents. That) I think) is a wise 
> improvement. 
> 
> However) Policy LU-3.5 continues to be problematic. While requlrlng 
> direct pedestrian and bike access from residential areas to commercial 
> areas might seem desirable for residents) it also allows employees and 
> overflow parkers convenient and direct access to residential streets 
> for their parking needs. This will become worse as parking along the 
> 41st Ave corridor is reduced. Creating buffers between commercial and 
> residential areas protects residents. This policy would work to remove 
> an important buffer. This policy is also unclear as to whether a new 
> single family residence on 42nd Ave) for example) could be required to 
> provide a public pathway and access point to'the 41st Ave commercial 
> area. This should be clarified. 

3 

-89-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 7.pdf



> 
> And) finally) one other request. I assume that the adoption of the 
> General Plan at your May 8th meeting is a possibility. If) however) 
> during your meeting any significant change to the document is made) 
> please do not approve it on May 8th. Rather) give the public the 
> opportunity to study and comment on these changes by continuing the 
> approval process at least two weeks. 
> This is only fair. and respectful to folks who have been working on 
> this process literally for years. 
> 
> Thank you. 
> 
> Nels Westman 
> 
> 

4 

-90-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 7.pdf


	AGENDA
	CLOSED SESSION – 6:45 PM
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCECouncil Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, and Mayor Sam Storey
	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Mayor’s Proclamation regarding “National Poetry Month,” and poetry reading by 2014-15 Santa Cruz County Poet Laureate Ellen Bass.
	[Presentation.pdf]

	B. Mayor’s Proclamation in recognition and appreciation to retiring Leslie White, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District General Manager.
	[02.B. Les White Proclamation.pdf]


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	9. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Consider approving the City Council Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on April 24, 2014.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 1, 2014.
	[Minutes.pdf]


	10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Receive update regarding the Santa Cruz County Library Joint Powers Authority.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	B. Consider a Resolution adopting the City’s General Plan Update and a Resolution certifying the Final Environmental Impact Report, adopting the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and Statement of Overriding Considerations.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]
	[Attach 4.pdf]
	[Attach 5.pdf]
	[Attach 6.pdf]
	[Attach 7.pdf]


	11. ADJOURNMENT


